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a dense cover that keeps the soil cool and reduces the rate of  evaporation.

theme of  this annual report: hope and resilience. 

teams under the emblem of  the protea.

Submission of  the Annual Report to the Executive Authority

To the President of  the Republic of  South Africa, Mr. Jacob Zuma, I have the honour to submit to you, in terms of  the

Public Finance Management Act (1999) the annual report of  The Presidency for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009.

Trevor Fowler

Hope and Resilience



Recognise the injustices of  our past;

Heal the divisions of  the past and establish a society based on democratic 

and

Build a united and democratic South Africa able to take its rightful place as a 

sovereign state in the family of  nations.

May God protect our people.

Nkosi Sikelel’ iAfrika. Morena boloka setjhaba sa heso.

God seën Suid-Afrika. God bless South Africa.

Kgalema Motlanthe

President of  the Republic of  South Africa

PREAMBLE

to the CONSTITUTION



OUR VISION

Excellence in governance for a better life for all

OUR MISSION

OUR VALUES

The Presidency’s values are based on the Constitution and aligned to the principles of  

Batho Pele (People First). 

The Constitution sets out the need for South Africa’s public administration to be 

governed by: 

A high standard of  professional ethics 

Development-orientated public administration 

Responsiveness to people’s needs and public participation in policy-making 

Accountability

Human-resource management that maximises human potential 

the imbalances of  the past. 

Batho Pele is founded on the principles of: 

Consultation

Setting service standards 

Increasing access 

Ensuring courtesy 

Providing information 

Openness and transparency

Redress 

Value for money. 

Baleka Mbete
Deputy President of  the 

Republic of  South Africa

VISION and 

MISSION

VALUES and PRINCIPLES
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The period covered by this annual report marked the end of the 2004-2009 electoral 
mandate.

During the State of the Nation Address in January 2008, then-President Thabo 
Mbeki outlined a series of initiatives to step up the pace of delivery and demonstrate 
a greater sense of urgency to achieve government’s goals, including the “apex” 
priorities further to boost growth and eradicate poverty. These initiatives formed a 
major part of government’s work during 2008/09.

foreword
director general: NOV 1996 - OCT 2008

secretary to cabinet: APR 1999 -APRIL 2009

Rev. Frank Chikane

Secretary to Cabinet

more rapid job creation. Better revenue collection further strengthened government’s 

Government’s public sector investment programme resulted in the construction of

millions of  our compatriots. 

urgently required. The poor are most affected by the rising food and fuel prices. 

lending conditions and greater international volatility. While sound macroeconomic

the economy entered a recession during the latter part of  the reporting period. 
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co

developing the long-term infrastructure 

investments needed for our economy to 

is also extending its skills development

programmes to address constraints. 

losses. 

During the reporting period government 

across various departments and spheres

of  government. The campaign includes

identifying specific households and

individuals in dire need to alleviate their 

plight.

Interventions continue to address the

economic dimensions of  the anti-poverty

strategy. These initiatives are creating more

improving the distribution of  returns from 

economic activity. 

continues to motivate South Africans and 

country’s abilities in this massive sporting 

that The Presidency’s next annual report

Africa is gearing to maximise the economic 

that it can also boost nation-building and 

social cohesion.

We have made important strides in 

advancing the African agenda. South

facilitated dialogue that led to the formation

South Africa assumed the chair of  SADC 

and is committed to strengthening regional

political unity and cohesion. We have

Africa’s Development (NEPAD). 

institutions such as the United Nations 

permanent member of  the UN Security 

Council came to an end in January 2009. 

The impact of  South Africa’s participation 

South Africa has also promoted dialogue 

through participation in the Group of  20 

(G20).

deputies and the former ministers in The

the legislature and the judiciary for their 

continuing commitment to transform our 

partnership for a better life for all. 

Frank Chikane

Secretary to Cabinet*

*Rev. Chikane’s contract as Director 

Rev. Chikane continued his duties as 

Secretary to Cabinet until the end of  the

reporting period.
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chief operations officer: JUL 2004 - AUG 2009

acting director-general: NOV 2008 - JUN 2009

preface

The Presidency is guided at the broadest level by the Constitution, and more 
specifically by government’s Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) and the 
Programme of Action. 

strategic agenda of  government. The

Presidency contributes to the creation

of  a better life for all by strengthening 

facilitating partnerships in this regard. 

articulated in the strategic plan 2008/09-

achievements against measurable

objectives. 

Key areas of  progress during 2008/09

included:

Updating the MTSF to take 

account of  adjustments in policy

implementation

Improving coordination and 

provincial and local government

Developing and enhancing 

institutional planning systems 

ahead of  the change of  government

The Presidency and other national 

departments.

Presidency produced the MTSF

necessary adjustments for the remainder 

of  the electoral period that ended in 

2009. Policy priorities during this period 

remained unchanged. The Presidency 

priorities set out in the 2008 State of  the 

Nation Address. These acted as catalysts 

in government’s development agenda

and added momentum to realising the 

Programme of  Action. 

in 2008/09. The National Spatial 

Development Perspective (NSDP) 

integrated development plans (IDPs). The 

to enhance the quality of  service delivery 

and the commitment of  public employees

to their responsibilities. The need for 

strong strategic development planning 

capacity at the centre of  government 

Trevor Fowler

 Acting Director-General in The Presidency

4



The Presidency continued to improve

evaluation (GWM&E). The Presidency

published its second set of  functional

in July. Monitoring of  implementation is 

managed through regular reports from

directors general clusters to Cabinet 

committees and in turn to Cabinet. The

clusters of  the Forum of  South African

chaired by the Director General in The 

Presidency. 

prioritise the legislative programme to 

the 2009 election. Systems development 

improved the quality of  legislation. 

The Presidency continued to promote

public participation through the izimbizo

enhances monitoring of  service delivery.

The Deputy President conducted 

provincial visits as part of  her oversight

role on governance. 

party in government decided to replace

Kgalema Motlanthe. The Presidency 

ensuring a seamless transition and 

Ahead of  the change of  government 

The Presidency implemented institutional 

memory systems and a business continuity 

plan to ensure a smooth transition to the

to navigate the global economic storm and

The Presidency remains determined to

forge ahead and demonstrate our resilience

and commitment to the people of  South 

Africa.

management and all of  the staff  of  The 

Presidency for their commitment and 

contribution to meeting the responsibilities 

of  The Presidency during these challenging 

times.

Trevor Fowler
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Section A
the strategic agenda of government





the rate of  investment in productive

capacity

the pace of  job creation

progressive social security net

combating crime and promoting 

service-orientated public 

administration

development.

These broad objectives formed the 

foundation of  the 2004-2009 electoral 

South Africa’s fourth national and

provincial democratic election on 22 

April 2009. 

the broad medium-term objectives

a number of  priorities for the reporting 

set out in the 2008 State of  the Nation

covered: 

infrastructure development

poverty eradication and economic 

inclusion of  those on the margins

achievement of  health for all

system

and children’s rights

on African issues and south-south

relations.

The key themes for the 2008/09 reporting 

Strategic Plan: 2008/09-2010/11. This 

years since the birth of  South Africa’s 

Towards a 

Fifteen Year Review: Synthesis Report (October 

2008).

promoting economic 

growth and development

1
The Presidency aims to accelerate progress towards a South African developmental 
state in which partnerships support a better life for all. Government’s strategic 
objectives have been to enhance social, cultural and economic welfare by:
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Special circumstances during the

developments:

number of  decisive steps to maintain

strengthen domestic and international 

meet its objectives. 

decided to recall President Thabo 

Kgalema Motlanthe. Government

in light of  this decision. The transition 

ensuring continuity in the systems

maturity of  democratic institutions. 

continuity plan to ensure a stable

platform for the government taking 

MACROECONOMIC ISSUES

create jobs and expand opportunity for

millions of  disadvantaged South Africans. 

Accelerating the pace of  economic 

promote employment creation and social 

development. 

and manufacturing sectors came under 

increasing pressure from the electricity 

deepening global economic recession. 

economy. Fiscal policy continued to support 

reducing South Africa’s vulnerability to 

external factors. These policies have led 

to a substantial reduction in public-sector 

in 2008. The Reserve Bank continued to 

build foreign reserves to over $34 billion

The rise in tax revenues resulting from 

collection and increased compliance 

enabled government to increase spending 

9



1. promoting economic growth and 

development

has had severe consequences for the 

and international production and trade. 

While prudent macroeconomic and 

South Africa from the effects of  the 

quarter of  2009 South Africa slipped into 

recession. 

of  production and in many sectors 

- Protect the poor

- Maintain a sustainable debt level

investment.

to prioritise protection of  the poor and 

vulnerable. 

Government continues to pursue a 

countercyclical fiscal policy. Broad 

stimulus measures include continuing 

the public-sector capital investment 

programme to the value of  R787 billion

over the next three years. To address 

Government intends to sustain and 

expand social expenditure through the 

The private sector has agreed to explore 

alternatives to job losses and to reskill 

employees in anticipation of  economic 

recovery. 

helped to shield domestic banks from the 

(2008) strengthens corporate governance. 

The Competition Amendment Bill 

ensure competitiveness and market 

transparency. 

Various measures have been discussed to 

policies. Government may consider 

targeted support in some sectors.

continues to engage in forums such as 

the G20 in support of  a more equitable 

and improved public services. 

largely imported through global fuel and 

RESPONSE TO THE GLOBAL
ECONOMIC CRISIS

10



Government remains committed to a 

In addition to addressing the acute 

reduce its relatively large current account 

programmes. 

To emerge from the global crisis 

intends to take measures to sustain 

agricultural production and raise export

performance.

ACCELERATED AND SHARED

GROWTH INITIATIVE

Government launched the Accelerated 

Africa (AsgiSA) to reduce unemployment 

and poverty by increasing the country’s 

marshals public and private resources 

to address critical constraints to faster

and programmes

medium businesses

South Africa’s productive capacity 

over the long term. The infrastructure 

a countercyclical boost to economic

are further supported by the National

plan. AsgiSA’s achievements have been

INFRASTRUCTURE

PROGRAMMES

Government plans to spend R787 billion 

on capital investment over the next three 

years. These investments are being made 

to upgrade and expand the road system 

the built environment through provision 

Gross fixed capital formation as a 

has also set ambitious targets to eradicate 

the municipal infrastructure grantt

government augments local resources for 

infrastructure. 

obtained access to electricity through the 

integrated national electricity programme. 

constraints that may inhibit reaching the 

target of  universal access to electricity 

infrastructure to support household 

11



1. promoting economic growth and 

development

inadequate municipal capacity to execute 

bulk infrastructure projects. 

electricity supply failures arising from a 

shortfall in generation capacity severely 

President announced a national planning 

response to this crisis involving all social 

efficiency campaign. The President 

convened the National Stakeholder 

Advisory Council on Electricity in June 

2008 to examine approaches to saving 

Inter-ministerial Committee on Energy 

and the National Economic Development 

utility’s infrastructure investments. 

the National Treasury implemented 

the infrastructure development and 

improvement programme. 

Investment in transport infrastructure has 

of  freight transported from road to rail 

Investment in modern urban transport 

systems continues. It is anticipated 

that the Gautrain Rapid Rail Link 

recapitalisation programme and bus rapid 

public transport 

and infrastructure systems grant supports 

host cities to accelerate transport-related 

infrastructure projects. These investments 

shorter commuting for millions of  South 

Africans.

Government continued investment 

in information and communications 

states and the private sector to support 

the construction of  undersea cables that 

continent.

SECTOR INVESTMENT

STRATEGIES

Government has implemented a range of  

interventions to diversify the economic 

base. The National Industrial Policy 

that have the potential to stimulate 

and agro-processing. 

Achievements in sector investment 

strategies include drafting the tourism 

charter; attracting investments of  over 

R900 million and creating 9 000 jobs in 

business process outsourcing; establishing 

2009. Government also supported the local 

pharmaceutical industry by procuring the 

bulk of  the country’s antiretrovirals from 

domestic manufacturers. 

The Competition Commission has 

rigorously enforced policies on pricing 

and concentration. During 2008/09 it 

Government has begun implementing 

R2.3 billion budgeted for industrial policy 

over the MTEF. 

12



Government remains committed to

redressing inequalities in the participation 

of  black people in the economy. The 

Codes of  Good Practice on Broad-based 

the development of  BBBEE throughout

socioeconomic development. Accelerated 

BBBEE remained a government priority in

SECOND ECONOMY

INTERVENTIONS

Government aims to help overcome 

the formal and informal sectors in the 

economy. Without interventions to reduce 

South Africa’s structural economic fault

for the marginalised poor. The ‘second 

this and is overseen by the AsgiSA high-

level task team in The Presidency. 

The strategy addressed the economic 

dimensions of  the anti-poverty strategy 

and contributed to

employment

participate in the economy

assets

affordable

returns from economic activity. 

abilities in rural and peri-urban

areas. An extension of  this programme

market-access programme for rural and 

peri-urban enterprises. 

medium and micro enterprises (SMMEs)

and cooperatives. Preferential procurement 

aims to ensure that smaller enterprises 

obtain a larger share of  government

Enterprise Finance and the Small

Enterprise Development Agency have

extended loans to smaller enterprises. 

The national youth service programme

is a second-economy initiative led 

The Presidency’s youth desk and the

Umsobomvu Youth Fund. It addresses 

youth unemployment by creating 

opportunities for voluntary service and skills 

development. The programme reached 

advisory centres. The Umsobomvu Youth 

The second phase of  the expanded 

becomes a catalyst for community

development. 

In addition the second economy strategy 

calls for investment in the transformation 

serviced neighbourhoods. Incentives 

contribute to alleviating hunger.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

In recent years sustainable development 

reducing climate change and mitigating 

in government policy. Government

has taken steps to reduce the country’s

environmental footprint. These include 

carbon emissions and to support more

environmentally advanced technologies

programmes to reduce electricity demand 

at residential and municipal level.

period of  formal consultation on this

subject.

13



Government’s multipronged approach to 

poverty includes: 

net for the most vulnerable

and primary health care for the poor

accelerating delivery of  houses and

land reform 

levels among poor South Africans to 

improve their employment prospects 

programme and other interventions. 

in 2008. 

term jobs by 2008. The second phase of  

the programme is being launched during 

Research has found that poverty has

four years. This is attributed to both job 

creation and social grants. 

The integrated rural development 

programme have contributed to 

improving the built environment through 

infrastructure investment in these areas. 

PROVIDING UNIVERSAL ACCESS

TO BASIC SERVICES

Providing basic services to all communities

is a top priority and key to the Millennium 

is committed to achieving. 

Government has registered considerable 

progress in this area. Access to potable

ERADICATING POVERTY

Studies show that, since 1994, government expenditure has become significantly more 
pro-poor. Yet while a period of strong economic growth has contributed to reduced 
unemployment, and government programmes have raised living standards for millions 
of South Africans, the levels of poverty and unemployment remain very high.

improving the quality 

of life

2

14



to 88 percent in 2008. The number of  

to electricity increased from 30 percent to 

72 percent during the same period; and 

sanitation from 48 percent to 73 percent.

infrastructure permits.

Although the December 2007 target for 

eradicating the bucket sanitation system

using the bucket system decreased from 

Many initiatives to increase access to basic 

services have taken place through the 

people and in rural communities. 

The poor delivery capacity of  many 

municipalities remains a serious obstacle 

to efficient service provision. Local 

capacity constraints frequently lead to 

underspending of  the municipal infrastructure 

grant

an average 22 percent vacancy rate. Skills 

levels are often inadequate. 

Government launched Project Consolidate 

in 2004 to support municipalities’ service 

municipalities. Experts provided technical 

resource development. 

municipalities to build capacity. The 

initiative aims to improve the disbursement 

of  the municipal infrastructure grant by boosting t

capacity.

IMPROVING SOCIAL SECURITY

Government’s social assistance programme

has played a key role in poverty alleviation. 

Social grants are provided to the most 

vulnerable through the child support grant, 

foster care grant, disability grant and old aget

pension.

The child support grant increased from 34 000 t

The threshold for men receiving pensions 

provides income support or compensation 

for those facing unemployment or 

THE WAR ON
POVERTY

The War on Poverty brings together a

actors. The campaign is designed to 

existing anti-poverty initiatives throughout 

government. 

households and individuals in dire need 

to alleviate their plight. Community 

conduct household visits to identify needs. 

available government services. 

level use both community and household 

plans. The data and plans are captured 

for systematic monitoring and evaluation 

(M&E).

of  multiple deprivation study conducted 

by Stats SA and the Human Sciences

Research Council. 

Government has established a War on

for service providers to obtain household 

M&E.

15
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2. improving the quality of life

old age. Social insurance comprises the 

the Compensation Funds and the Road 

Accident Fund. Long-term reforms to 

the current provision of  social grants 

are under consideration to expand the 

reach and coverage of  social security 

and protection. A government task 

team continues to prepare proposals for 

comprehensive social security and reform 

of  the retirement industry. 

ENHANCING THE QUALITY OF

EDUCATION

Quality education is essential to break 

the cycle of  poverty and disadvantage. 

Education is the single largest item on 

the national budget. Expenditure for 

In the most recent period government 

has also prioritised spending on early 

childhood development and further 

education and training. 

Achievements in education include near-

universal access to enrolment at primary 

of  no-fee schools in poor communities. In 

no-fee schools. The country is on track 

to meet the target of  universal access for 

Government launched the Kha Ri Gude (let 

us learn) mass literacy campaign during 

the reporting period. This initiative aimed 

to provide literacy classes to 300 000 adults 

The upgrading and construction of  

school infrastructure has received priority. 

The Dinaledi Schools Initiative has 

language competence in public schools. 

The Department of  Education expanded 

schools. 

The education system is not yet producing 

the skills required by the economy and 

divisions of  the past. 

recruit and retain teachers. The initiatives 

include government-provided bursaries 

enter teacher training. An improved 

remuneration structure that incorporates 

performance-related salary progression 

has been put in place. Career-pathing has 

also been strengthened. Government has 

training colleges. 

GROWING THE SKILLS BASE

South Africa’s chronic skills shortage 

service delivery. Government has taken 

a number of  steps to reduce this skills 

The Joint Initiative on Priority Skills 

business and organised labour to 

accelerate the acquisition of  priority 

skills. 

JIPSA has ensured that more resources 

16
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in companies in South Africa and 

internationally. 

Achievements during the reporting period 

include:

authorities (SETAs) to train 20 000 

increase the supply of  ICT skills 

establishing a placement agency 

human resource development strategy

for South Africa. 

Notable gains have been made through

the skills development learnership 

programme. The numbers produced 

skills challenges facing the country. To 

in August 2008 Cabinet approved the 

into the country’s national human 

resource development strategy. 

Government launched a ten-year 

innovation plan for science and 

technology in 2007 to support research 

and development. Areas targeted for 

enhanced innovation and support include 

the understanding of  human and social 

dynamics.

PROVIDING HOUSING AND

HUMAN SETTLEMENT

Government’s social programmes have 

improved the asset base of  the poor in 

the form of  housing and land. 

South Africa. 

and internal migration trends are

continually raising demand in these areas.

search of  economic opportunity has led to 

large population increases in the Western 

Cape and Gauteng. These shifts have

informal settlements. 

Challenges in housing delivery include

access to strategically located land. Many 

spatial concentration in urban areas

brings added costs. The Land Use

these shortcomings. 

settlements. The policy objective of  

integrated housing and 

human settlement development grant from

17
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2. improving the quality of life

municipalities

Agency to access land for residential 

development and use.

FAST-TRACKING LAND REFORM

AND RESTITUTION

Land restitution and land reform are 

crucial elements in redressing apartheid 

and addressing asset poverty. 

hectares of  land have been redistributed 

Shortcomings in the land programme 

include inadequate post-settlement 

support and the failure of  many 

productive capacity. The economic 

impact of  land and agrarian reform is 

post-settlement support. 

reinforced its commitment to successful 

implementation of  the Provision of  Land 

in 2008.

IMPROVING THE HEALTH

PROFILE OF THE NATION

the provision of  quality health care for all. 

This has included major improvements in 

access to primary health facilities. Some 

immunisation coverage has increased to 

about 88 percent and malaria cases have 

declined due to government’s prevention 

rainy season.

During the reporting period government 

took steps to strengthen the comprehensive 

care of  HIV and AIDS. South Africa’s 

antiretroviral treatment programme is the 

been initiated into the programme. Some 

93 percent of  primary health facilities 

provide HIV and AIDS counselling and 

testing. Research points to stabilisation in 

the spread of  the pandemic and a slight 

reduction in the rate of  HIV infection 

in 2008. A Human Sciences Research 

Council study found HIV prevalence 

2008.

Government has declared tuberculosis a 

top national health priority. Co-infection 

and the emergence of  multidrug-resistant 

and extreme drug-resistant strains of  this 

disease has made treatment more costly. 

The Department of  Health has stepped 

up the treatment and support programme 

Additional resources have been made 

extended isolated hospitalisation. 

by the provision of  quality care. Some 

facilities lack required medicines and are 

inadequately staffed. In some hospitals 

attitudes need improvement. 

18
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in 2007. 

government has continued to invest in 

health care infrastructure. The hospital 

revitalisation grant has resulted in physicalt

improvements and the construction 

management and quality improvement. 

care facilities have been constructed or 

To increase the number of  suitably 

has established a strategy to create mid-

example that is already implemented is that 

the Walter Sisulu University has enrolled 

assistant category (mid-level doctor). 

REDUCING VULNERABILITY

The quality of  a democracy is also 

is paid to society’s most vulnerable

government has targeted its efforts to

the elderly. There has been important 

remain.

Social and economic inequalities are felt 

more intensely in vulnerable sections of  the 

Maternal mortality has risen due to HIV 

high.

Government has stepped up programmes 

to improve children’s nutrition. In 2008

national school nutrition programme.

at schools. 

Targeted programmes have ensured 

that female-headed households receive a 

housing and health care. Easier access to 

and electricity eases the burden on

have been primary beneficiaries of

business initiatives. 

of  all senior positions in the public

Government has made some progress in 

has yet to reach the 2 percent target.

a strategy to promote employment and 

the public sector. 

Government has been actively involved 

for No Violence Against Women and 

years focused on the mobilisation of

communities. 

institutional arrangements support

programmes to improve the lives of  the

on the Rights of  the Child and a Youth

desk.
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rationalised the fragmented public 

service left by apartheid. The government 

developed a cluster system to improve 

coordination and integration. Today the 

demographic composition of  the public 

service approximates that of  South 

African society. 

Coordination of  implementation 

is managed through the annual 

priorities and targets for each cluster to 

MTSF. Monitoring of  implementation 

is managed through bimonthly reports 

from directors general clusters to Cabinet 

mechanisms to harmonise national 

38 district municipalities 

The institutions of  representative 

as independent institutions established in 

the Commission on Gender Equality. 

Various forums and processes support 

community consultations to formulate 

2008/09.

the regulatory impact assessment (RIA) 

pilot programme. RIA is a methodology 

for improving the quality of  regulation 

by analysing the potential effects of  

proposed legislation and regulations. 

of  resources had supported policy 

that the mandates of  these institutions be 

Government’s Thusong service centres 

improving governance 

and capacity

3
Government seeks to develop the capacity of  the state at all levels to improve service 

20



community development centres. They 

provide services relevant to people’s needs 

information and resources. By the end 

to have access to information and services 

Izimbizo have been held regularly since 

Izimbizo involve the 

President or Deputy President; and 

national Izimbizo

involve the executive and representatives 

government. 

While these measures have been 

need to strengthen both the effective 

accountability of  public representatives 

to be done to improve the service culture 

public on a daily basis. 

Rights campaign in May 2008 to educate 

on the Batho Pele change management 

in 2009 to promote the spirit of  Batho 

Pele and enhance the commitment of  

employees to their duties. 

In August 2008 government inaugurated 

the Public Administration Leadership and 

Management Academy to improve public 

service training. 

The Public Finance Management Act 

Finance Management Act (2003) are 

While there has been an improvement 

an adverse opinion; only (Home Affairs) 

introduced the 

and the municipal systems improvement grant

to modernise local government budgeting 

In Towards a Fifteen Year Review: Synthesis 

Report 

government. The cluster system requires 

a shift from joint planning to joint 

implementation and various proposals are 

being considered in this regard.
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3. improving governance and capacity

 IMPROVING SOUTH AFRICA’S
PLANNING PROCESSES

South Africa needs strong medium- to 

long-term national development planning. 

began a process to put in place realistic 

and integrated plans. These processes 

municipal IDPs. 

Policy Coordination and Advisory 

Services (PCAS) unit in The Presidency 

to investigate options for strengthening 

planning capacity at the centre of  

government. 

PCAS recommended developing a Vision

and provide a story-line of  the South 

Themes for such a vision could include 

social cohesion. 

The unit proposed the establishment of  

a national planning entity at the centre 

of  government to manage and coordinate 

alignment of  policy planning and resource 

plan to establish planning capacity at the 

apex of  government. 

approaches can be improved to ensure 

that coordination and integration extend 

beyond joint planning to implementation 

allocation. 

MONITORING AND

EVALUATION

M&E is central to the concept of  a 

developmental state. The government-

programme introduced to strengthen the 

capacity of  M&E units in departments. 

The Presidency monitors government’s 

Programme of  Action on a bimonthly 

basis. 

The Presidency published the 

Indicators

economic categories to chart the progress 

of  South Africa’s transformation. The 

broad themes covered by this publication 

employment; poverty and inequality; 

household and community assets; health; 

education; social cohesion; safety and 

security; international relations; and good 

governance. 

Africa has become one of  a select group of  

countries that publish annual information 

on outcomes-based M&E of  changes in 

society’s quality of  life. 

FIGHTING CORRUPTION

Government is determined to root out 

an anti-corruption hotline. Government 

hosted the Third National Anti-corruption 

form the basis for the second national 

anti-corruption programme.
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ELECTIONS

electoral participation and robust debate. 

The fourth national democratic elections 

organised under the oversight of  the 

registered voters participated.

BUILDING SAFER

COMMUNITIES

then most categories of  crime have begun 

to stabilise or decline. These trends are

Government recognises that the scourge 

insecurity for South Africans. Much more 

and security. 

The comprehensive revamp of  the 

criminal justice system seeks to address 

to 2008/09 the number of  enlisted South 

African Police Service (SAPS) personnel 

number of  police personnel is expected to 

justice system focuses on the need to 

justice system. 

courts dedicated to sexual offences trials. 

the incidence of  rape is particularly high. 

They are linked to the sexual offences 

courts and have improved conviction

rates through better investigations and 

victim support. 

Other initiatives that have had an impact 

on crime are the specialised courts for

Against Crime and the initiatives of  The 

support the revamp of  the criminal justice

system. Specialised task teams have been 

hijacking and cash-in-transit heists.

Amendments to the Sexual Offences

Act in 2007 and the Children’s Act in

2008 strengthened the legal arsenal for

the transformation of  the judiciary.

PROMOTING SOCIAL

COHESION, NATIONAL

IDENTITY AND COMMON

VALUES

prosperous society requires increasing 

social cohesion. Towards a Fifteen Year 

Review

possibility for positive change. 

The indicators of  social cohesion paint a 

complex and changing landscape. 

One of  the consistently positive indicators 

support for the national sports teams. It
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3. improving governance and capacity

all the projects and plans for the World 

By hosting the Confederations Cup in 

proud.

South Africa maintains a high level of  

electoral participation. 

Efforts continue to promote South African 

poetry in recognition of  the contribution 

that arts and culture can play in the 

creation of  a national identity and 

strengthening a sense of  belonging. 

future. 

Since 2004 there have been changes 

substandard socioeconomic environments. 

This is affected by the persistence of  

income inequality and has the potential to 

related to the pace and quality of  service 

delivery have spread. It is a concern that a 

number of  these protests and some strikes 

have been marred by violence. 

xenophobic attacks aided by a strong 

criminal element flared up on an 

unprecedented scale in a number of  

to social cohesion. 

communities. Parliament established 

a task team to probe the attacks and 

and a high rate of  unemployment. 

In August 2008 government held a 

Social Dialogue on Xenophobia. It 

communities and organisations 

representing foreign nationals. The 

against all forms of  xenophobia. Summits 

to popularise the declaration
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MTSF period included a focus on

and participating in the global system of  

governance. 

South Africa and its African partners

ensure the adoption of  an action plan for 

committed themselves to promote peace 

development assistance. 

signed up for comprehensive scrutiny

(APRM). The APRM report on South

Africa raised a number of  challenges

that are the subject of  government’s

South Africa for a number of  best

practices. South Africa subsequently

developed a comprehensive APRM 

programme of  action and reported on 

progress in its implementation in January 

2009.

advance the vision and mission of  the 

Burundi and Sudan. 

South Africa and Mali completed part 

of  the archives to preserve the ancient 

to document Africa’s early contributions 

commerce. 

and strengthening SADC political unity 

infrastructure development and deepening 

regional economic integration.

The SADC gave further impetus to trade 

integration at the August 2008 summit 

states.

As part of its policy commitment to contribute to the creation of a better Africa and 
a better world, South Africa has continued to advance the interests of developing 
countries, with a particular focus on the African continent

4
a better africa and 

a better world
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For a number of  years government has 

social crisis. 

The SADC mandated South Africa to 

and a presidential run-off  involving only

facilitation of  former President Thabo 

concluded negotiations on forming a 

stable and legitimate government during 

the basis for the installation of  an inclusive 

government and preparing the ground for 

the creation of  conditions for holding free 

leader of  the Movement for Democratic

prime ministers. 

The AU and the SADC have called on the 

international community to end sanctions 

in December 2008. It aims to mobilise

resources to address pressing challenges

agricultural inputs and other social needs. 

designed to guide the country’s actions

TOWARDS PEACE AND
RECONSTRUCTION IN ZIMBABWE

EU economic partnership agreements

have extended beyond the reporting 

period so that outstanding matters raised 

by South Africa and its SADC partners can 

be resolved. Negotiations relevant to the

SACU-Mercosur trade agreement have

been concluded. 

Other partnerships expected to be

strengthened over the period ahead include

Movement and the Group of  77. 

South Africa has sought to transform north-

south relations through active participation

Cooperation and Development (OECD)

and the G20.

Monetary Fund and other multilateral 

as a non-permanent member of  the UN 

Security Council came to an end in January

2009. During its tenure on the Security

primary objectives by helping to revitalise 

and the AU. 

South Africa is an active participant

socioeconomic governance and promoteSouth Africa-EU strategic partnership agreement. Multilateral negotiations on the SADC-
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4. a better africa and a better world

developing countries. 

South Africa is committed to the objectives 

of  international agreements such as the 

development agenda of  the negotiations 

on the World Trade Organisation’s 

rebalancing the global trading system 

so that it no longer favours the most 

developed countries.

CONCLUSION

of  The Presidency during 2008/09. It 

also takes note of  government’s ongoing 

Despite the tangible achievements of  the 

and providing a better life for all. 

labour absorption and extension of  social 

Kgalema Motlanthe emphasised during 

the February 2009 State of  the Nation 

Long Walk 

to Freedom:

I have walked that long road to freedom. I 

have tried not to falter; I have made missteps 

along the way. But I have discovered the 

secret that after climbing a great hill, one 

I have taken a moment here to rest, to steal 

a view of  the glorious vista that surrounds 

me, to look back on the distance I have come. 

But I can rest only for a moment, for with 

freedom comes responsibilities, and I dare not 

linger, for my long walk is not yet ended.

It is in this spirit that the outgoing 

administration passed the baton to the 

The next section of  the report focuses 

to meet its strategic objectives during 

the core functions of  component 

branches. Section C assesses programme 

performance and achievements against 

measurable objectives. Section D provides 

in The Presidency. Section E presents the 
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Section B
the work of the presidency





strategic achievements

oversee and communicate the strategic

to serve its purpose as effectively and

through six branches: 

General and the Chief  Operations

President

Communications

PCAS. 

Descriptions of  the core objectives 

of  each branch and their component

subsection 3. 

THE PRESIDENCY’S

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

To strengthen strategic management

and leadership capability to achieve 

greater organisational cohesion

and sharing of  information

communicate government policies

integrated service delivery

To foster nation-building and social 

cohesion to give effect to the People’s 

Contract

To promote the integrated approach 

to governance for accelerated service 

delivery

initiatives for building a better Africa

To promote accelerated and shared 

economy and social inclusion. 

1
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STRENGTHENING STRATEGIC

MANAGEMENT AND

LEADERSHIP CAPABILITY

state. It also coordinated and facilitated 

the development of  strategic management 

and leadership capacity in government 

and The Presidency. 

the electoral mandate period. The MTSF 

serves as a guide to budgetary priorities

and the Medium Term Expenditure

spending plans of  national and provincial 

time of  the national budget. 

PCAS planning 

unit supported the preparation and t

development of  the MTSF. The MTSF

the July Cabinet Lekgotla. The Presidency 

for the remainder of  the electoral period 

ending in 2009. Some of  the priorities in

the 2008 annexure extend over a period of  

This included evaluation of  the degree to 

strategies are supported by various role 

have the capacity to implement these

strategies. The evaluation indicated 

planning system. The factors necessary 

and administrative and political leadership 

The planning unit 

districts and metros. The project has 

highlighted coordination and integration

as structural challenges to be addressed 

in the overall governance system. To this

year programme to improve municipal 

capacity. 

Parliament to pass urgent bills before the

2009 election. The supported 

the Leader of  Government Business in

ensuring that departments prioritised them

preparation of  bills through joint meetings 

departments. The  managed

this process closely to ensure adherence 

to deadlines. Systems development for the 

process map that improved the quality 

introduced in the reporting period.

template for Cabinet memoranda and

distributed this to departments and 

ministries. 

The Presidency commissioned a

comparative study on medium-term to

long-term planning in six developing 

strengthening South Africa’s planning 

need for strong institutional arrangements 

and implementation plans. During the

January 2009 Lekgotla
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1. strategic achievements

an operational plan for strategic 

development planning capacity at the 

centre of  government. 

The planning unit

published under the title South Africa Scenarios 

2025: The future we chose? The scenarios 

2008. A process of  strategic engagement 

content and implications of  the scenarios 

for their sectors also began during 

national departments (Government 

Limpopo).

 supported the Director 

General in his role as chair of  the 

FOSAD and its management committee. 

The Presidency provided strategic 

leadership to ensure continuity in the 

administration and management of  the 

public service during the transition to the 

The  coordinated 

meetings of  top management and the 

affect the strategic management of  The 

Presidency. 

Legal and executive services

and Operations branch ensured that the 

constitutional and legal obligations of  

the Promotion of  Access to Information 

of  executive acts and a concept paper on 

The 

of  the Child

youth and children’s programmes into 

the mainstream of  government and civil 

society.

The Presidency faced challenges in 

securing and retaining the requisite 

controls and supply chain management. 

Presidency during the reporting period 

had an impact on control functions and 

the ability of  some branches to meet their 

obligations. The human resource management

has the necessary human capital to 

implement its strategic mandate. The 

human resource service delivery model 

The President endorsed the 

recommendations of  the Independent 

Commission for Remuneration of  Public 

During 2008/09 the information technology 

and knowledge management systems unit in the 

Strategy and Operations branch drafted 

and approved a strategic information 

systems plan to guide The Presidency’s 

information technology services for the 

next three years. 

The  in the Strategy and 

Operations branch approved the policy 

on risk management and developed a 

fraud prevention plan.

The risk management unit is located in 

of  the COO. Branch heads approved the 

policy on risk management in December 
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Upgrading of  the security system of  

the Union Buildings is in progress and

expected to be completed in September 

2009.

The Leader of  Government Business is

the Deputy President. 

Leader of  Government Business commissioneds

enabled the quality of  a number of  bills 

to be enhanced. 

IMPROVING MANAGEMENT

ACCESS AND SHARING OF

INFORMATION

communication of  government policies 

and programmes. 

The Communications branch plays a key 

role in realising this strategic objective by 

management services. The branch 

developed a 2008/09 communications

end of  the reporting period. It completed 

a comprehensive online media database 

Presidency and local and international 

journalists. 

Internal communications increased 

access and sharing of  information by 

redesigned The Presidency’s intranet

are located in the Union Buildings and 

A selection and acquisitions committee 

resource collection is consultative and 

relevant to The Presidency. Improvements

in the service included converting the

publications lending system from manual 

institutions. 

The Communications branch regularly 

content relevant to government and the

internal 

communications and publications unit also 

the Commission for the Remuneration of

Communications implemented the use of  

online platforms that appeal to younger

communications and publications unit 

also developed and launched a children’s 

National Communications Centre and 

retrieval of  documents generated during 

the outgoing administration. 

COORDINATION, MONITORING

AND EVALUATION FOR

ACCELERATED SERVICE

DELIVERY

development and maintenance of

a coordinated M&E system to track 
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1. strategic achievements

outcomes necessary for planning and 

assessment.

Enhancing or creating functional 

M&E systems in departments 

Creating strategic M&E systems 

systems. 

M&E and simultaneously producing 

strategically placed M&E products for 

use by the executive. 

The GWM&E unit in PCAS developed 

modular approach to develop a functional 

the basis of  a large-scale project on data 

understand the existing administrative 

used according to sector. 

The Presidency has undertaken extensive 

of  government’s progress in achieving 

a better life for all. The Presidency 

published the 

governance categories. A similar set of  

functionality report assessing 32 indicators 

President and Deputy President on the 

functioning of  government departments. 

The Presidency monitors government’s 

management system acts as a central 

repository for updated information on the 

implementation of  priority programmes 

announced in the President’s annual State 

of  the Nation Address. The 

in the implementation of  these priorities 

through reports received on a bimonthly 

2008/09 GWM&E unit monitored 309 

activities in the Programme of  Action.

administration. 

The Deputy President visited all provinces 

during 2007 and 2008 to strengthen 

intergovernmental planning and M&E. 

PCAS coordinated the production of  

Towards a Fifteen Year Review: Synthesis Report.

research papers on various topics and 

synthesising the research into a single 

overseen by a reference group chaired by 

the Minister in the Presidency. 

th Thusong 

part of  monitoring and promoting service 

delivery. Community members access 

information on government programmes 

and services at these multipurpose 

centres. 

FOSTERING NATION-BUILDING

AND SOCIAL COHESION

The Presidency provided leadership and 

facilitated participatory governance to 

support nation-building and strengthen 

social cohesion. 

memorial tribute for the victims of  

xenophobia. The Deputy President 

Head

Policy Coordination and Advisory Services
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visited a number of  areas affected by the 

to lead efforts to reintegrate foreign 

and celebratory events on public holidays 

Reconciliation. He attended the closing 

for No Violence Against Women and 

Eastern Cape. 

The Presidency strengthened public 

participation through the Izimbizo

communities. The President attended 

four Izimbizo in 2008/09. The Presidency 

reporting and evaluation systems to track 

progress on issues raised at these forums. 

Izimbizo

presented to the incoming government. 

an important role in nation-building by 

and contributions to South Africa. The 

Presidency held three successful National 

protocol 

and ceremonial services unit in the Strategy 

and Operations branch coordinated 

President’s participation in the opening 

funerals and conferences. The unit 

and the condolence books for the late 

Miriam Makeba. 

Traditional leadership is recognised

as an important repository of  South 

Africa’s cultural heritage. The Deputy 

President executed her political oversight 

over selected traditional leaders’ affairs

of  Provincial and Local Government

and the National House of  Traditional 

Leaders. 

The Deputy President promotes

cooperation and public support for the

National Strategic Plan on HIV and AIDS

by chairing the South African National

AIDS Council. Government has stepped 

Deputy President led a delegation to the 

XVII International AIDS conference in

Mexico in August 2008. 

The Deputy President supported the

Moral Regeneration Movement in its

preparations for the adoption of  the 

Charter on Positive Values in July 2008. 

Other projects contributing to social

cohesion and nation-building included 

the launch of  the War on Poverty

campaign at national and provincial level. 

This comprehensive campaign aims to 

reduce household poverty and to provide 

a basket of  services available to families in

dire need. The Deputy President hosted a 

media event at the outset of  the initiative 

and launched the campaign in the North 

The Presidency established the national

replicated in the provinces to coordinate 

local efforts. 

Sport plays an important role in

strengthening social cohesion and nation-

building. The Presidency continued to 

support and monitor the vast array of

construction and other projects associated 

remain largely on track. 
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1. strategic achievements

called Ambassadors for Human Rights 

championed and initiated by the spouse 

of  the Deputy President.

PROMOTING INTEGRATED

GOVERNANCE FOR

ACCELERATED SERVICE

DELIVERY

The Presidency provides leadership to 

improve the capacity and organisation 

of  the state. These efforts promote 

integrated governance for accelerated 

and accountability. 

government synchronises its activities. 

Cabinet 

President and ministers to facilitate a 

seamless transition in the management 

of  Cabinet business. 

The FOSAD fosters an integrated 

making and service delivery. The FOSAD 

Secretariat coordinated meetings of  the 

forum’s management committee and 

included the fortnightly and monthly 

meetings of  the FOSAD clusters to deal 

coordinated and cooperative manner. 

The secretariat also coordinated 

FOSAD’s policy support to ministerial 

Cabinet committees and the Cabinet 

Makgotla. Clusters deliberated on 

government’s Programme of  Action and 

prepared bimonthly reports to Cabinet 

and for publication on the government 

and commented on documents dealing 

Cabinet for approval.

The governance and administration unit 

coordination at national government 

level. 

Governance and administration

implementation of  the occupation-

year local government strategic agenda to 

of  service throughout government 

local level. 

To ensure coordination across the tiers of  

Presidential Coordinating Committee 

provincial directors general and the South 

African Local Government Association. 

To promote integrated governance and 

to discuss cross-cutting issues. 

regulatory impact assessment. The RIA 

initiative aims to strengthen strategic 
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management capacity and capability 

across government by assessing the

anticipated impact of  regulatory measures 

and identifying areas of  policy overlap. 

economic 

sector unit in PCAS consolidated capacity 

pilot phase. 

The justice, crime prevention and securitye unit in 

PCAS participated in the corresponding 

Cabinet cluster to address issues such 

rehabilitation of  offenders and border 

control matters. The unit took part in

research to assess the impact of  crime 

criminal justice system. 

A number of  units in The Presidency 

contributed to the preparation of  the 

the international economic crisis.

The President hosted a special joint 

National Stakeholder Advisory Council 

chaired by the President. The council 

developed an action plan to increase 

the National Electricity Response Team 

and feeds into the Inter-ministerial 

Committee on Energy. 

The coordinates 

bodies such as the Commission on Gender 

focus on National Women’s Month and 

The

hosted the National Disability Summit 

on the UN Convention on the Rights 

delegates from national and provincial

disability attended the summit. Workshops

in 70 municipalities in six provinces. The 

The established 

district and local municipalities. The 

conducted a study on child killings that 

National Youth Development Agency 

through the merger of  the National 

Youth Commission and Umsobomvu 

Youth Fund. 

INITIATIVES FOR BUILDING A

BETTER AFRICA AND A BETTER

WORLD

The Presidency provided leadership in

a range of  international initiatives that 

democracy and good governance for 

sustainable development. This is in



1. strategic achievements

Bank.

A number of  branches and units oversee 

and implement interventions to achieve 

this strategic objective. The Director 

General played a key role in overseeing 

the international programme of  the 

Minister in The Presidency. International 

relations and trade 

responsible for facilitating the integrated 

coordination and implementation of  

Protocol and ceremonial services in the Strategy 

and Operations branch coordinated 

the international programmes of  the 

President and Deputy President. 

The Presidency supported the President’s 

participation in a range of  multilateral 

The SADC appointed the President 

to facilitate negotiations to assist in the 

formation of  a unity government in 

member of  the facilitation team. South 

African mediation helped the parties to 

reach an agreement to form an inclusive 

government. 

 coordinated four 

NEPAD representatives. The forum 

provides support to the NEPAD Steering 

Committee and the NEPAD Heads of  

State and Government Implementation 

the activities of  the NEPAD Secretariat 

and the APRM Secretariat. 

The coordinated 

the third meeting of  the Forum of  the 

Secretaries of  Cabinet and Permanent 

Secretaries/Directors General to 

Heads of  State and Government in the 

SADC region in October 2008. The 

purpose of  the forum is to strengthen 

the implementation of  resolutions and 

AU. The forum is chaired on a rotational 

Africa began a one-year term as SADC 

chair in August 2008. 

The 

state parties on the UN Convention on 

bureau. 

The participated 

in the signing of  the SADC Protocol on 

Gender and Development in August 

state in January 2009. 

of  Women co-hosted a joint monitoring 

committee on improving the quality of  

compiled and submitted a report on 

South Africa’s progress in implementing 

the Convention on the Elimination of  all 

Forms of  Discrimination against Women 

The 

participated in the Africa Preparatory 

meeting for the III World Conference 

on Sexual Exploitation of  Children and 

subsequently presented South Africa’s 

2008.
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The 

facilitated the process for South African 

children to participate at the Junior G8 

also participated in the SADC Forum on 

the Development of  a Regional Strategy 

2008.

serves as the AU-appointed facilitator in 

the Democratic Republic of  Congo. The 

and the leadership of  the Southern 

Sudan to facilitate implementation of  the 

comprehensive peace agreement. 

The President hosted a number of  heads 

President Laurent Gbagbo of  Côte 

d’Ivoire 

President Susilo Bambang 

Yudhoyono of  Indonesia

President Umaru Yar’Adua of  

Nigeria

President Hosni Mubarak of  Egypt

The President attended various 

The annual meeting reinforced 

strong trade and political relations 

encouraged the G8 countries to 

made at the Gleneagles summit in 

The October 2008 IBSA summit in 

global economic crisis.

2009.

The February 2009 AU summit in

on infrastructure development on

the continent.

PROMOTING ACCELERATED

AND SHARED ECONOMIC

GROWTH

Promoting accelerated and shared 

poverty alleviation and job creation. 

the President announced the War on

Poverty campaign. The social sector unitr

in PCAS led the drafting of  the anti-

poverty strategy and the development of  

an implementation plan. The Presidency 

social sector unit began implementing the

programme to support pro-poor policy

development and the national income

dynamics study. 

The AsgiSA initiatives play a central role 

economic sector unit of  PCAS supportedr

the Deputy President in her strategic

leadership of  AsgiSA. 

The economic sector unit supported ther

President and Deputy President to

develop and coordinate the response

to the electricity emergency. This

culminated in the formation of  the
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1. strategic achievements

National Electricity Response Task Team 

and a National Stakeholder Advisory 

Council on Electricity. The Deputy 

President appointed energy champions to 

campaign.

group led government’s response to the 

to these events in February 2009. The 

employment and distressed sectors. 

The JIPSA programme is an AsgiSA 

intervention to address priority skills 

shortages holding back economic 

development. The economic sector unit 

JIPSA to the National Human Resource 

Development Strategy.

economic sector

The unit provided support for the 

development of  industrial sector 

strategies. During the reporting 

beneficiation strategy. The strategy 

capacity and employment. 

The unit focused on sector strategies 

manufacturing industry. 

The economic sector unit provided support 

to initiatives to improve the local business 

initiated by the Department of  Trade 

and Industry. 

The 

projects to promote inclusion of  people 

developed. 

The 

former First Lady in 2003 that brings 

The and the 

economic sector unit supported the President 

in a number of  meetings related to 

economic development:

International Investment Council. 

These meetings focused on the 

negative economic climate and 

scenario planning. 

The Presidential International 

Advisory Council on Information 

Society and Development met in 

September 2008 to assess progress 

on government’s use of  information 

and communication technology to 

assist in economic development and 

information dissemination. 

The President attended the World 

Economic Forum’s Africa Summit 

42



The President hosted a number of  

meetings to discuss the promotion of  

These include the Panel of  Economic 
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STRATEGY AND OPERATIONS

The Strategy and Operations branch is

responsible for the overall management

and administration of  The Presidency. It 

is divided into four units: 

Corporate services

Financial management

Legal and executive services

Protocol and ceremonial services.

The branch also provides administrative 

management for the Office of  the

COO. The strategic management to the

units is provided by the Director General 

and the COO respectively.

The Director General is the strategic

role and constitutional responsibilities. As

facilitates the alignment of  departmental 

President through reports on oversight

of  the implementation of  government’s

programmes; advice on interventions to

facilitate the achievement of  government’s

strategic agenda; and coordination

National Security Council and sector 

clusters of  directors general.

and effective operation of  all branches in 

meeting the objectives as set out in the 

Strategic Plan of  The Presidency. All

internal audit and internal security report

to the COO. The COO is the deputy head 

of  The Presidency and acts as head of

The Presidency in the Director General’s 

Presidency. This unit is also responsible for

and Treasury regulations. 

Internal audit

Internal audit has the primary responsibilityt

to provide objective oversight of  The

SUMMARY DESCRIPTION OF 

PRESIDENCY BRANCHES

Ken Terry

Deputy Director General

Strategy and Operations

2
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Presidency’s operations for effective and 

and professional auditing standards. The

control and governance processes. 

Internal security

Internal security is responsible for ensuring 

a safe and secure environment in The

Presidency and at the residences of  the

state agencies to enhance security. It

is required to ensure the adherence of

The Presidency staff  to the minimum

occupational health and safety standards 

and other standards as required by security

legislation. 

The  is responsible for

assessing the risks in achieving the strategic

the facilitation of  the development and

implementation of  risk mitigation measures 

by management. A risk assessment is

performed annually and is used as input

for the annual audit plan. The risk 

to monitor the risk environment and the 

mitigation of  risks.

Corporate Services

Human resource management

The human resource management unit ensures t

that The Presidency has the necessary 

human capital to implement its strategic 

mandate. 

Information technology and 

knowledge management

IT and knowledge management unit is t

and upgrading computer equipment and 

systems.

Household and accommodation

Household and accommodation unit ensures 

that facilities are cared for. These include 

Protocol and ceremonial services 

Protocol and ceremonial services unit ensures that 

domestic and international functions and 

public engagements hosted by or attended 

by the President and/or Deputy President 

are properly managed and coordinated. 

Legal and executive services 

The legal and executive services unit derives its 

mandate from the need to ensure that the 

constitutional and other legal obligations of  

unit provides administrative support to

the Independent Commission for the

PRIVATE OFFICE OF THE 

PRESIDENT

support to ensure that the President is able 

effectively to perform his responsibilities

as head of  state. The branch manages

the President’s diary and coordinates the

domestic and international programme

professional support service to the Minister

in The Presidency in the execution of  his 

constitutional and legal obligations. The

the President and Deputy President in the 

execution of  their functions. 

General

Personal support and advisory 

services

Ministerial services.
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PRIVATE OFFICE OF THE 

DEPUTY PRESIDENT 

The Private Office of  the Deputy 

administering and coordinating strategic 

support services to the Deputy President. 

The branch is composed of  the 

and the strategy and special projects chief  

directorates. 

The Private Office of  the Deputy 

President focuses on formalising 

aligning and enhancing the structure of  

of  the Leader of  Government Business 

function.

The strategy and special projects chief  

directorate provides strategic support to 

the Deputy President in areas such as the 

social cohesion and economic inclusion. 

ministerial committees to manage these 

responsibilities.

The personal support services chief  directorate 

is responsible for overall administrative 

support to the Deputy President.

COMMUNICATIONS

The Communications branch is 

research and information services to 

enable The Presidency to communicate 

the South African and international 

The branch is composed of  four units:

Media liaison functions as the 

for cultivating and maintaining 

evaluate the media environment. 

This unit also provides logistical and 

strategic media support for all public 

Deputy President and Minister. 

Public participation supports public 

management.

Research, drafting and speechwriting is 

media environment on a daily basis.

Internal communications and publications

and maintains and updates the 

archival and current information. It 

manages The Presidency’s intranet.

CABINET OFFICE

executive in its strategic management of  

government business. The key functions 

provides support include: giving strategic 

direction to government; ensuring 

effective decision-making and better 

and the implementation of  government 

policy; and maintaining the effectiveness 

and integrity of  government systems. 
Anne Letsebe

Deputy Director General

2. SUMMARY DESCRIPTION OF 

PRESIDENCY BRANCHES
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provides strategic and administrative 

support to Cabinet and to the Deputy 

President in his/her role as the Leader 

of  Government Business. 

the 

Cabinet Secretariat and Cabinet Operations.

POLICY COORDINATION AND 

ADVISORY SERVICES

The core mandate of  PCAS is to facilitate

integrated strategic policy formulation and 

implementation across government. PCAS

monitors and evaluates the interpretation 

of  policies and the implementation of  

Deputy President and Minister on any 

interventions necessary to ensure more

clusters and national departments.

PCAS consists of  nine units. In the area 

of  policy these are: 

Economic sector 

Social sector

International relations and trade 

security

Governance and administration. 

The other units are: 

Persons and the youth desk 

Planning

GWM&E

FOSAD secretariat and corporate 

support services.
Dr Alan Hirsch

Deputy Director General

Policy Coordination and Advisory Services
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Cabinet Committee on Governance and Administration 20

Cabinet Committee for the Social Sector 20

9

Cabinet Committee for the Economic Sector 20

Cabinet Committee on Investment and Employment 4

28

TABLE 2: MEETINGS OF PRESIDENTIAL WORKING GROUPS

20 May 2008

24 June 2008

4 December 2008

24 February 2009 

29 February 2008

4 March 2009 

tables

3
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TABLE 3: MEMBERS OF THE INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENT
COUNCIL

Mr Masaki Miyaji Corporate Adviser Mitsubishi Corporation

Chairman Reuters Group PLC

Dr Martin Kohlhaussen

Prof  Dr H C Juergen Schrempp
Former Chairman of  the Board of  Management of  
DaimlerChrysler

Mr Ratan Tata Chairman of  Tata Sons Limited

Tan Sri Dató Mohd Hassan 
Marican

President and CEO of  Petroliam Nasional Berhad (PETRONAS)

Mr Percy Barnevik Chairman of  the Board of  AstraZeneca PLC

Sir Samuel Jonah Non-executive Chairman Anglo Gold Ashanti

Mr Frank Savage

Ms Anne Lauvergeon Chairman of  the Executive Board of  AREVA

Mr Lakshmi Mittal

Mr William Rhodes

Mr Viktor Vekselberg Chairman Renova

Mr Roger Agnelli CEO Companhia Vale do Rio Doce (CVRD)

Sir Anthony O’Reilly

TABLE 4: MEMBERS OF THE PANEL OF ECONOMIC ADVISERS

Dr Iraj Abedian

Dr Haroon Bhorat

Mr JP Landman

Ms Viv McMenamim

Mr Lumkile Mondi

Ms Gloria Serobe

Dr Rejoice Simelane
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ORDERS

Ms Mary Burton Dr John Kani

Mr Ahmed Kathrada

Ms Sophia Williams De Bruyn Prof  Christina Landman 

Prof  Brian Figaji Ms Ruth Mompati

Dr Yvonne Muthien (Chairperson)

Mr Mendi Msimang Lt-Gen Gilbert Ramano

Mr George Negota (Chairperson)   

Ms Nopasika Lila (Deputy Chairperson)  

Ms Lorraine Francois 

Mr Ebie Seedat 

Mr Ncedo Mlamla 

TABLE 7: MEMBERS OF THE NATIONAL STAKEHOLDER COUNCIL
ON ELECTRICITY

Prof  Raymond Parsons

Dr Laurraine Lotter

Mr Roger Baxter 
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TABLE 8: PRESIDENTIAL ADVISORY COUNCIL ON INFORMATION
SOCIETY AND DEVELOPMENT

Mr Sergio Giacoletto

Ms Esther Dyson

Mr David Potter

Dr. Henry Chasia

Prof  Seymour Papert

Mr Rudi Lamprecht

Mr Jacques Dunogue

Mr Jorma Ollila

Prof  Hasso Plattner

Mr Jean-Phillipe Courtois

Mr Hans Ulrich Maerki

Mr Mark Hurd

Prof  Manuel Castells

Mr Thierry De Beaucé

Mr Masood Jabbar

Ms Carly Fiorina

TABLE 9 A: IZIMBIZO OF THE PRESIDENT AND THE DEPUTY
PRESIDENT

Province Date

Mpumalanga

Free State August 2-3

North West August 23-24

Eastern Cape

TABLE 9 B: DEPUTY PRESIDENT’S PROVINCIAL OVERSIGHT VISITS

Province Date

Limpopo

Mpumalanga

North West 23 August 2008

Eastern Cape 20 February 2009 

Mpumalanga 28 February 2009 
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impacted internationally and served the interests of  the Republic of  

The Order of  Ikhamanga

The Order of  the Mendi 
Decoration for Bravery

The Order of  Luthuli

achievement. 

The Order of  the Baobab
innovation and community service. The Supreme Counsellor of  the 

outstanding service. 

Order of  the Companions of  
OR Tambo

actively promoted the interests and aspirations of  South Africa 
through excellent cooperation and active expression of  solidarity and 

aspirations through outstanding cooperation; and the Companion 

promoted the interests and aspirations of  South Africa through 

April 2008

The Order of  the Companions of  OR Tambo

Category II: Silver

Jerry Dunfey

V.K Krishna Menon

Per Wästberg 

Category III: Silver Linda Biehl
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The Order of  the Baobab

Category I: Gold
Sydney Kentridge

Pius Langa

Category II: Silver
Ruth Machobane

Winston Njongonkulu Ndungane

Wiseman Nkuhlu

Franklin Sonn

Filippus Letladi Mminele (Posthumous)

The Order of  Luthuli

Category I: Gold

James Arthur Calata (Posthumous)

Robert Resha (Posthumous)

Walter Rubusana (Posthumous)

Category II: Silver

Himan Bernadt (Posthumous)

Jean Bernadt

Josiah Jele

Zolile Malindi

Barbara Masekela

Nana Henrietta Moabi

Billy Modise

Maggie Resha (Posthumous)

Vesta Smith

October 2008

The Order of  Mendi for Bravery

Category I: Gold (Posthumous)

Nomava Shangase (Posthumous)

The Order of  Ikhamanga

Category I: Gold Richard Victor Selope Thema

Category II: Silver

Peter Henry Abrahams 

Ronnie Govender

Bryan Habana 

Alfred Hutchinson (Posthumous)

Barbara Jurgens 

Keorapetse William Kgositsile 

Sibongile Khumalo

Zakes Zulu Mokae 

Percival Montgomery 

Lionel Morrison

George Mxadana

Lauretta Ngcobo

Makhaya Ntini 

Shaun Maclean Pollock

Stanley Sono

Miriam Tlali

53



3. tables

Category I: Gold Doris Lessing

Category II: Silver

Wieland Gevers

Phuthi Ngoepe

Timothy David Noakes

Pragasen Pillay

March 2009

The Order of  the Baobab

Category II: Silver

Irene Menell

Roelf  Petrus Meyer

Ethel Normoyle 

Cyril Ramaphosa

Aanon Michael Rosholt 

Masenyeki Priscilla Mokone (Posthumous)

Rashaka Frank Ratshitanga

The Order of  Luthuli

Category II: Silver

Kader Asmal

Brian Bunting (Posthumous)

Tlou Theophilus Cholo

Denis Theodore Goldberg

James Arnold la Guma (Posthumous)

Rebecca Masilela (Posthumous)

Jacqueline Daane-van Rensburg 

The Order of  the Companions of  OR Tambo

Category I: Gold

Category II:Silver

Christian Krause

Sadako Ogata

Marcelino dos Santos

Bengt Säve-Söderbergh

Andimba Toivo ya Toivo

Jennifer Davis

March 2008

Republic of  Bangladesh High Commissioner Shahidul Islam

Republic of  Cameroon High Commissioner Adrien Kouambo Jomague

June 2008

Union of  Comoros Ambassador Ahmed Mohamed Thabit

Republic of  Turkey Ambassador Can Altan

Republic of  Trinidad and Tobago High Commissioner Winston Mahabir

Federal Democratic Republic of  Nepal Ambassador Rambhakta PB Thakur (non-resident: 
resident in Cairo)

August 2008

Dominican Republic Ambassador Raul F Barrientos-Lara

Republic of  Korea Ambassador Han-soo Kim

Ambassador Abd Mohamed Mohamed Yahia

Republic of  Lebanon Ambassador Michel Thomas Katra
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September 2008

Ukraine Ambassador Valeriy Hrebenuik

Republic of  Burundi

Kingdom of  Lesotho
High Commissioner Lineo Lydia Khechane-

Ntoane

Slovak Republic Ambassador Ladislav Straka

October 2008

Burkina Faso Ambassador Moumouni Fabre

Republic of  Iceland Ambassador Gudmundur Eiriksson

Republic of  Guinea Ambassador Gaoussou Toure

Republic of  Italy

Republic of  Cuba

Arab Republic of  Egypt Ambassador Mohamed Badr Eldin Mostafa Zayed

Ambassador Peter Tejler

Federal Republic of  Nigeria
High Commissioner Brig Gen (Rtd) Mohammed 

Republic of  Austria

December 2008

Kingdom of  Spain

Ambassador Rudolf  Bärfuss

Japan

State of  Israel Ambassador Dov Segev-Steinberg

February 2009

Republic of  Tunisia Ambassador Dr Ahmed Mahjoub

Federation of  Malaysia

High Commissioner Ann Jacqueline Harrap

Republic of  Colombia Ambassador Edgar José Perea-Arias

Republic of  Poland Ambassador Marcin Kubiak

March 2009

High Commissioner Geoffrey John Randal

Jamaica High Commissioner Audley Rodriques

Republic of  Portugal Ambassador João Nugent Ramos-Pinto

Socialist Republic of  Vietnam Ambassador Nguyen Manh Hung

Republic of  Peru Ambassador Daúl Matute-Mejía

Republic of  Singapore High Commissioner Bernard William Baker

Presidential acts processed by legal and executive services unit

Type Number

Assent of  acts of  Parliament

Foreign visits by ministers 474

Foreign visits by deputy ministers

8

Appointment of  commissioners of  inquiry 0

TOTAL: 738
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Presidential minutes processed by legal and executive services unit

Type Number

Proclamations 49

Pardons 484

International agreements

49

TOTAL 703

Executive acts of  the President processed

449

28

TOTAL NUMBER OF FILES: 477

Year / bill no. Name of  bill

2008

Traditional Courts Bill 

Expropriation Bill

Social Assistance Amendment Bill

Financial Intelligence Centre Amendment Bill

Consumer Protection Bill 

20 South African National Space Agency Bill 

22 Liquor Products Amendment Bill

23 National Prosecuting Authority Amendment Bill 

24 Agricultural Debt Management Repeal Bill 

Air Services Licensing Amendment Bill 

27 Land Use Management Bill 

28 Protection of  Information Bill 

29 Special Pensions Amendment Bill 

30 South African Police Service Amendment Bill 

Competition Amendment Bill 

32

33

34 Higher Education Amendment Bill

General & Further Education & Training Quality Assurance 

Amendment Bill 

South African National Water Resources Agency Limited Bill 

37 Intelligence Services Amendment Bill

38 National Strategic Intelligence Amendment Bill 

39

40 Provision of  Land and Assistance Amendment Bill 

National Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute Bill 

42 Criminal Procedure Amendment Bill 
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Year / bill no. Name of  bill

43
Legal Succession to the South African Transport Services Amendment 

Bill

44 Medicines and Related Substances Amendment Bill

National Conventional Arms Control Amendment Bill 

Intellectual Property Rights from Publicly Financed Research and 

Development Bill 

47 Public Administration Management Bill 

48 Judicial Matters Amendment Bill 

49 Skills Development Amendment Bill 

Repeal of  the Black Administration Act and Amendment of  Certain 

National Land Transport Bill 

National Energy Bill 

Built Environment Professions Bill 

Mine Health and Safety Amendment Bill 

Diplomatic Immunities & Privileges Amendment Bill 

National House of  Traditional Leaders Bill 

Medical Schemes Amendment Bill 

Mineral and Petroleum Resources Royalty Bill 

Mineral and Petroleum Resources Royalty (Administration) Bill 

Companies Bill 

Constitution Fourteenth Amendment Bill 

Constitution Fifteenth Amendment Bill 

Legislature or Municipal Council) Amendment Bill 

National Health Amendment Bill 

National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Amendment 

Bill

Methodist Church of  South Africa (Private) Act Repeal Bill 

Dutch Reformed Churches Union Act Repeal Bill 

70 Bible Society of  Southern Africa Act Repeal Bill 

The Apostolic Faith Mission of  South Africa (Private) Act Repeal Bill 

72 Broadcasting Amendment Bill 

73 Civil Aviation Bill 

74 Financial Management of  Parliament Bill 

Money Bills Amendment Procedure and Related Matters Bill 

Adjustments Appropriation Bill 

77 Eskom Subordinated Loan Special Appropriation Bill 

78 Finance Bill 

79
Government Employees Pension Fund (Condonation of  Interrupted 

Service) Bill 

80

82 National Youth Development Agency Bill 
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Year / bill no. Name of  bill

2009

Constitution Sixteenth Amendment Bill

2

3
Amendment Bill 

4 Division of  Revenue Bill

Appropriation Bill

Western Cape Inherited Debt Bill

Total number of  bills introduced = 88

Advocate Mojanku Gumbi Legal Adviser 

Mr Titus Mofolo Political Adviser

Mr John Jeffery Parliamentary Counsellor

Dr Khulu Mbatha Special Adviser

Mr Ebrahim Rasool Political Adviser

MLAMBO-NGCUKA

Mr Ayanda Nkuhlu Political Adviser

Amb Zolile Magugu Special Adviser

Ms Raisibe Morathi Economic Adviser

Ms Nonhlanhla Mjoli-Mncube Economic Adviser

Ms Dorothy Motubatse Parliamentary Counsellor

Political Adviser

Legal Adviser

Mr Gregory Goeller Economic Adviser

Mr John Jeffery Parliamentary Counsellor

Dr Zavareh Rustomjee Infrastructure 

Ms Grace Mabumbulu Skills development/JIPSA

Dr Neva Makgetla Sector strategies
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Prof  Anver Saloojee Political and Governance

Mr Tony Heard Communications

Dr Phethile Dlamini Political and Governance 

Annual Report 2007/08

2008 Development Indicators

JIPSA Annual Report 2008

AsgiSA Annual Report 2008

TABLE 20: 

Country Title

Democratic Republic 
of  Congo

Angola

Kingdom of  Saudi 
Arabia

Cooperation agreement in sport

Sudan Agreement in health and medicine

Nigeria Agreement on cooperation in tourism

Sudan
Exchange of  notes to amend the agreement on the modalities for the 
establishment of  a joint bilateral commission

International 
Telecommunication 
Union

Republic of  Burundi Agreement on cooperation in health

Germany
Exchange of  notes on an agreement on capacity and institution building for 
Southern Sudan: legal affairs and correctional services training programme

FAO
Agreement on sustainable food production and nutrition education in schools 
in support of  the national school nutrition programme

Republic of  Benin Agreement on defence cooperation

United Nations
Summit on the arrangements for the 2008 International Youth Crime 
Prevention and Cities Summit

Sultanate of  Oman
Supplementary protocol amending the agreement for the avoidance of  double 

Republic of  Korea Agreement on cooperation in the peaceful uses of  nuclear energy

African Union 
African Diaspora

International Civil 
Aviation Organisation

Agreement on the special Africa-Indian Ocean regional air navigation 

Syria Agreement on cooperation in education

Ireland
programme

Agreement on cooperation in energy
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Country Title

Republic of  Guinea 
Bissau

Agreement on health 

World Health 
Organisation

Agreement concerning the holding of  the third session of  the conference of  

Republic of  Namibia Agreement on cooperation in the peaceful uses of  nuclear energy

Republic of  Korea Agreement for regular diplomatic consultations 

Namibia Agreement on cooperation in health

Republic of  Tunisia

Cyprus
Protocol amending the agreement on the avoidance of  double taxation and 

Germany
income and on capital

African Union 
AU headquarters

African Union
AU Headquarters

Ethiopia Agreement on defence cooperation

United States of  
America

Amendment no. 3 to the strategic objective grant agreement for increased use 
of  HIV/AIDS and other primary health care services

Mali

Kenya Bilateral trade cooperation agreement 

United States of  
America

Amendment no. 3 to the strategic objective grant agreement for increased 
sustainable local government service delivery

Germany Agreement concerning technical cooperation in 2004

Germany

United States of  
America

Amendment no. 3 to the strategic objective grant agreement for increased 
access to quality education and training

Germany Agreement on cooperation in veterinary affairs

African Union
AU Headquarters

African Union
AU Headquarters

United States of  
America

Canada

Agreement on cooperation in arts and culture

India Tripartite agreement on cooperation in tourism

India Air services agreement 

Mauritius Agreement on the coordination of  search and rescue services

United Nations

Germany

Trinidad and Tobago

coastal management and development 

United States of  
America

Agreement on cooperation in research and development of  nuclear energy

Cuba
Amendment to agreement for promotion and reciprocal protection of  
investments 

United States of  
America

Amendment no. 3 to strategic objective grant agreement for democratic 
consolidation
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Country Title

Finland
Agreement concerning the Finnish-Southern African Partnership for Africa's 
Development

Nigeria
Signing of  the bilateral agreement on the memorandum of  understanding 
(MOU) on economic cooperation

Argentina Agreement on cooperation in the peaceful use of  nuclear energy

United Arab Emirates Defence cooperation agreement

France
Africa (Enhlangano Project)

Agreement concerning reciprocal exemption from visa requirements for 

United States of  
America

Amendment no. 3 to strategic objective grant agreement on increased 
sustainable local government service delivery 

China
Agreement concerning mutual legal and executive services assistance in 
criminal matters

China Agreement concerning surrender of  fugitive offenders

United States of  
America

Information exchange annex to master information exchange agreement 
concerning military environmental cooperation

Mexico
evasion

Saudi Arabia 

Burkina Faso 

Germany
Agreement concerning the introduction of  a South African-German bilingual 

Germany

Germany

Germany Agreement on technical cooperation in 2008

Burundi

Senegal MOU on defence cooperation

Thailand MOU on agriculture cooperation

Sultanate of  Oman

Senegal 

Senegal MOU on bilateral cooperation in agriculture

Sri Lanka

Central African 
Republic

MOU concerning the provision of  military training and capacity building to 
the armed forces of  the Central African Republic 

India MOU on agricultural cooperation

Sudan

Lesotho
MOU in respect of  the Maloti-Drakensberg transfrontier conservation and 
development area

management issues

UNDP MOU for support of  the MDG carbon facility

Namibia

FAO

Kenya MOU on bilateral cooperation in the agricultural sector

Korea MOU on cooperation in information and communication technology

Kenya MOU on economic cooperation 

Senegal

MOU on diplomatic consultations 
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Country Title

India MOU on agriculture cooperation

Egypt MOU on cooperation in area of  civil service

Egypt MOU on economic cooperation

Madagascar MOU on technical cooperation in agriculture

Zambia MOU on cooperation in health

Mauritius MOU on economic cooperation

Sudan MOU on cooperation in agriculture

Namibia MOU on agriculture

United Mexican States MOU on the establishment of  a binational commission

Austria 
00/2007

Country Title

Multilateral
investment and development 

Multilateral Agreement amending Article 20 of  the SADC Protocol on Trade

Multilateral

Multilateral 
(MERCOSUR)

Multilateral
cooperation in sport and recreation

Multilateral Agreement amending the SADC Treaty

Multilateral
environmental affairs

Multilateral
settlements development

Multilateral

Multilateral
development and gender equality programmes

Multilateral
agreement
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Date Hosting/Visiting Place

3 April Working visit by President Kabila of  DRC Presidential Guesthouse

Working visit Qatar

9 May Working visit

Working visit 

3 June Pretoria

Outgoing Sudan visit Sudan

Working visit Harare

Working visit Harare

30 July Working visit Harare

Working visit Harare

Working visit Angola

2 September Union Buildings

8 September Working visit Harare

Working visit Harare

Working visit Sudan

Courtesy call by UNICEF executive director 
Ann Veneman

Mahlamba Ndlopfu

Courtesy call by EU commissioner Louis Michel Union Buildings

Courtesy call by Foreign Minister of  the People’s 
Republic of  China Yang Jeichi

Union Buildings

Courtesy call by AU Commissioner Jean Ping Presidential Guesthouse

23 January Working visit to Mali Mali

24 January Working visit to Mali Mali

SADC extraordinary summit Presidential Guesthouse

27 January
Courtesy call by the Abu Dhabi investment 
delegation

Union Buildings

28 January Working visit to Davos: WEF Davos

29 January Working visit to Davos: WEF Davos

30 January Working visit to Davos: WEF Davos

Working visit to Davos: WEF Davos

AU summit Addis Ababa

2 February AU summit Addis Ababa

3 February AU summit Addis Ababa

Olusegun Obasanjo

Working visit 

Courtesy call by the Mexican Secretary of  
Foreign Affairs Patricia Espinosa

Tuynhuys

Minister Tsvangirai
Tuynhuys

23 February
Courtesy call by Saudi Arabian Minister of  
Commerce and Industry Abdullah Zainal Mahlamba Ndlopfu

Moon and Mrs Ban Soon-Taek
Presidential Guesthouse

Meeting Chilean President Michelle Bachelet 
State Protocol Lounge

Tuynhuys
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

is guided by and structured according to the requirements issued by the National Treasury. 

coordination and executive management functions in support of  the President to ensure harmonious and integrated service 

delivery throughout the state system. 

Administration Communications and Executive Coordination. To serve these 

1. VOTED FUNDS

Appropriation
(’000)

Main appropriation
Adjusted

appropriation
Actual amount spent Over/under expenditure

MTEF allocation 290 040

Statutory appropriation -

Responsible minister Minister in The Presidency

Administering department The Presidency

COO in The Presidency

2. AIM OF VOTE

the execution of  their executive responsibilities.  

3. KEY MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES, PROGRAMMES AND ACHIEVEMENTS

3.1 Strategic objectives 

To strengthen strategic management and leadership capability to achieve greater organisational cohesion

service delivery

To foster nation-building and social cohesion to give effect to the People’s Contract

To promote the integrated approach to governance for accelerated service delivery

inclusion.
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3.2 PROGRAMMES

Programme 1: Administration

The programme is responsible for the overall administration

and coordination of  support services. The programme 

oversees the strategic agenda of  government by maintaining 

government departments. The programme is divided into 

four subprogrammes:

Minister

Management

Support services to the President

Support services to the Deputy President.

Programme 2: Communications

the Minister in the execution of  their constitutional and

and information services to enable them to communicate 

public participation. 

Programme 3: Executive Coordination

government’s programme. Executive Coordination provides 

for the strategic management of  the business of  Cabinet and 

The programme is divided into four subprogrammes:

PCAS

National Youth Commission.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

3.3 Strategic objectives, strategies, measurable objectives and achievements

S/O No. Presidency strategic objectives S/I No. Presidency strategies per objective M/O No.

To strengthen strategic management and 
leadership capability to achieve greater 
organisational cohesion

Strategies and plans of  action for all spheres of  government and organs 

achievement of  its electoral mandate

Coordinate and facilitate development of  strategic management and 
leadership capacity and capability of  government

Strengthen strategic management and leadership capability and 
promote greater organisational cohesion in The Presidency
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Presidency measurable objectives Achievements per measurable objective

Annually updated Medium Term Strategic 

priorities Programme of  Action updated and published

Summary report on alignment of  MTSF and MTEF prepared

Annual monitoring/assessment report on legislative programme compiled

Facilitation of  coherent and integrated 
government strategic planning by Cabinet in 2009 

Facilitation of  aligned and coordinated 

remaining 29 district municipalities
Interventions to improve alignment implemented 

Report on provision of  strategic support 
to government programmes aimed at 
strengthening capacity and macro-
organisation of  the state

bills before the 2009 national election

legislation

Capacity built or strengthened in all spheres 
of  government to achieve the mainstreaming 

programmes in government and civil society

SADC Protocol on Gender and Development signed 

Disability Summit on the UN Convention

the Commission on Gender Equality through the national gender machinery 

More than 47 000 youth participated in the National Youth Service Programme projects 

Status in the development and implementation Inputs and participation in various processes supporting intergovernmental cohesion took place 

intergovernmental planning and M&E 

Coordination and alignment in processes and 
systems of  the Presidency

Strategic Plan aligned to Estimates of  National Expenditure 

Status in the implementation of  an aligned 
human resources management and 

strategy and master systems plan implemented 
in The Presidency

Integrated human resource management and development strategy developed

Human resource service delivery model developed and aligned to strategy

Master systems plan developed

Existing business continuity strategy enhanced

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

3.3 Strategic objectives, strategies, measurable objectives and achievements

S/O No. Presidency strategic objectives S/I No. Presidency strategies per objective M/O No.

2
sharing of  information information

2.2

3.
communicate government policies and 
programmes and accelerate integrated 
service delivery

Lead and ensure the development and maintenance of  a coordinated 
GWM&E system

3.2 Availability of  information on the implementation experience of  
programmes and policies 

4. To foster nation-building and social 
cohesion to give effect to the People’s 
Contract

Provide leadership and facilitate participatory and democratic 
governance systems that contribute to the mobilisation of  society to 

goals
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Presidency measurable objectives Achievements per measurable objective

Integration and coordination of  information Enhancements to information management systems completed 

Development and implementation of  an 
annual Presidency communication and public 
relations strategy

Draft communications strategy developed 

Draft public relations strategy developed

departments developed

Annual operational plan of  all national M&E projects compiled

Guideline for M&E for provincial premiers developed

Enhancement in the coordination and 

departments developed

2008 Development Indicators report published

Monitoring system for government priorities 
through the Programme of  Action evident 
through bimonthly reports 

Six provincial oversight visits by Deputy President conducted 

2008 legislative programme agreed and oversight to ensure submission to Parliament commenced

309 activities in the Programme of  Action regularly monitored

Databases on the implementation experiences 
of  programmes and policies

Fifteen-year Review published and 
recommendations implemented

Fifteen-year Review

2008  published and disseminated 

implementation of  a cohesive and coordinated 
agenda for nation-building

International Advisory Council on Information Technology Society met 

War on Poverty campaign launched in eight provinces

The President attended four Izimbizo

National Day of  Reconciliation events

Coordinated public participation strategy and 

and engagement of  society in government 
initiatives

Draft public participation policy and plan approved

Events management protocol approved

Izimbizo

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
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3.3 Strategic objectives, strategies, measurable objectives and achievements

S/O No. Presidency strategic objectives S/I No. Presidency strategies per objective M/O No.

To promote an integrated approach to 
governance for accelerated service delivery

Promote coordination of  implementation of  integrated programmes 
across government that result in accelerated service delivery for 
sustainable development

Deepen governance and accountability through application of  
principles and practices of  good governance

initiatives for building a better Africa and a 
governance for sustainable development
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Presidency measurable objectives Achievements per measurable objective

Enhanced level of  coordination of  
government service delivery

The President convened four Presidential Coordinating Committee meetings

seamless transition in management of  Cabinet business 

Five-year local government strategic agenda supported

Interventions to address bottlenecks 
in formulation and implementation of  
programmes and policies

bottlenecks and possible solutions

Quarterly report on the achievement of  milestones and issues requiring President’s intervention 

Government’s bimonthly reporting cycle automated

Programme of  Action standardised

National Stakeholder Advisory Council on Electricity formed

Enhanced government processes Risk management policy approved by branch heads 

Fraud prevention plan developed 

Enhancement in the legislative environment 
and the role of  Leader of  Government 
Business

through just and equitable multilateral and 
bilateral agreements

South Africa began chairing SADC in August 2008 

President hosted heads of  state from a range of  countries 

Egypt and Namibia

President attended the G20 meeting in Washington to address the global economic crisis

President attended the G8 Summit in Japan 

Ministry of  Foreign Affairs

Comprehensive APRM programme of  action developed and progress report submitted in 2009

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
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3.3 Strategic objectives, strategies, measurable objectives and achievements

S/O No. Presidency strategic objectives S/I No. Presidency strategies per objective M/O No.

7. To promote accelerated and shared 

emphasis on the second economy and social 
inclusion

Facilitate coordinated interventions and macroeconomic approaches 

reduced inequality 
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Presidency measurable objectives Achievements per measurable objective

Continuity of  international programme International programmes of  President and Deputy President developed and approved by the 
Director General 

Template designed to track international decisions and status by relevant stakeholders

Several high-level national gender machinery meetings hosted to strengthen participation of  NGOs 
and other stakeholders 

Strategic partnerships initiated or strengthened through National Disability Summit on the UN 
Convention

municipalities in six provinces 

Deputy President’s year-end children’s event hosted in Pretoria

Implementation of  interventions to achieve 
broad socioeconomic development

Africa enhanced 

National Electricity Response Task Team and National Stakeholder Advisory Council on Electricity 

International Advisory Council on Information Technology Society met during reporting period

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
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3.4 Overview of  the service delivery 

environment 2008/09

Virement took place mainly from compensation to transfers 

leave gratuity payments at the time of  the Adjustments 

Report on rollovers

The relocation process to additional accommodation

Outstanding commitments on administrative costs.

Report on unforeseeable and unavoidable 

expenditure

on poverty. 

Report on other adjustments

3.5 Overview of  the organisational 

environment for 2008/09

highly skilled and management staff. The vacancy rate 

salary offers and career prospects. 

The Presidency remains committed to appointing more 

in management positions by 2009. 

3.6 Strategic overview and key policy 

developments for 2008/09 

The Presidency coordinates policy and monitors its 

4. DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE,

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER SPECIFIC 

TOPICS

4.1 Collection of  departmental revenue

The Presidency does not render services to the public and 

refunds due by other departments in the event that they had 

(R’000)
2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2008/09

%

Actual Actual Actual Target Actual From target

Tax revenue Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Non-tax revenue 72 84

Sales of  goods and services produced 80

Transfers received - - - - - -

3 4 4

Sales of  capital assets (capital reserve) -  32 - - -

Financial transactions (recovery of  loans 
and advances) 48 97

Total departmental receipts 126 1 738 289 234 233 0%76



4.3 Transfer payments

The National Youth Commission

The Minister in The Presidency serves as the Executing 

established in terms of  the National Youth Commission 

conferred or assigned to it under the abovementioned act. 

It reports directly to the Minister in The Presidency. Funds 

are transferred to the entity on a quarterly basis.

Isigodlo Trust

and semi-rural areas. Its programmes support government’s 

strategic objectives. Funds are transferred to the trust based 

on claims submitted requesting reimbursements

4.2 DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURE (R’000)

Voted for 
2008/09

Rollovers and 
adjustments

Virement Total voted
Actual

expenditure
Variance

Programme 2 320

Programme 3 83 248

Sub-total 290 040 -

Statutory appropriation - -

Total 292 495 24 240 - 316 735 331 246 (14 511)

Transfer payments (R’000)

Name of  institution Amount transferred Estimate expenditure

Vehicle licence 2 0

National Youth Commission 24 333 24 333

South African Chapter of  the African Renaissance 

Isigodlo Trust 3 000 3 000

Non-life insurance premiums

24

Total 30 577 28 464

 4.4 Conditional grants and earmarked funds

The Presidency has not received or granted any conditional grants.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
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 4.5 Capital investment, maintenance and asset 

management plan

Capital investment

The Presidency did not engage in any capital investment 

year.

Maintenance

Public Works.

Asset management 

year. 

process. 

reporting period. 

Refurbishment continued in the houses of  the principals. 

Buildings and upgrading of  the security system. 

Processes are in place for the tendering of  projects. Services 

the tendering process of  the department. The Presidency’s 

process according to relevant legislation and National 

Treasury guidelines. The bid committee ensures that the 

and cost-effective.

5. PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

INFORMATION: PROGRAMME

PERFORMANCE AGAINST OPERATIONAL 

PLANS FOR 2008/09

Programme performance information per programme and 

subprogramme

The individual programme performance information per 

measurable objective indicated in the Strategic Plan: 2008/09 

-2010/11

Annexure 1: Administration

Annexure 2: Communications

Annexure 3: Executive coordination
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ANNEXURE 1

Administration

Purpose:

and administrative support to the principals and 

branches of  The Presidency.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 1 

Oversight and facilitation to ensure the establishment and 

enhancement of  coherent and integrated strategic planning 

processes and sessions.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Facilitate and coordinate the Deputy President’s leadership 

role in updating and aligning the MTSF. Indicators include 

reports.

Service delivery achievements

Enhanced alignment through provincial oversight

visits

Led the War on Poverty campaign and developed the

comprehensive anti-poverty strategy

Enhanced coordinating mechanisms through fully

SANAC and AsgiSA). 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 2

Norms and standards ensuring organisational cohesion

processes and systems. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Align Presidency planning and budgeting processes

Improve organisational cohesion

intervention

suitable approaches

Service delivery achievements

planning processes

Aligned strategic plan to the Estimates of  National 

Expenditure 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 3 

An aligned human resource management and development 

implemented in The Presidency.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Implement and institutionalise an integrated human

resources management and development strategy

Develop draft business continuity strategy and

implement plan

Implement and institutionalise the annual milestones

in the master systems plan.

Service delivery achievements

Completed an integrated human resources management

and development strategy

Developed a human resource service delivery model

aligned to the strategy
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the skills audit and areas of  development for senior 

management 

Developed master systems plan 

Developed business continuity plan

strategy. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 4

A coordinated public participation strategy and plan 

of  society in government initiatives. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

supported Izimbizo and action on commitments made 

by the Deputy President emerging from the Izimbizo

Strategic management of  the principals’ visibility and 

protocol and nation-building strategies. 

Service delivery achievements

Reached a range of  stakeholders in pursuit of  social 

business and traditional leaders through public events

participation programme

Completed audit of  National Orders policies and 

procedures 

Warrants for existing National Orders have been 

approved 

Allocated protocol support to all public events 

attended by political principals 

A chapter on Izimbizo outcomes is a permanent feature 

of  provincial reports.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 5

Address bottlenecks in formulation and implementation of  

programmes and policies.

Service delivery objectives and indicators 

Develop and monitor the implementation of  

adjustments to remove bottlenecks

Identify and recommend solutions to bottlenecks.

Service delivery achievements

to remove bottlenecks

Conducted advance planning and provided timeous 

focusing on issues raised during State of  the Nation 

Address

and special projects.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 6 

Good governance measures implemented in all branches of  

The Presidency.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Ensure good governance measures are consistently 

implemented in The Presidency.

Service delivery achievements

payables

corporate governance 
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Reported loss of  state assets to the police as required

Completed MTEF and Estimates of  National 

Expenditure budget documents on time

and policy according to the National Treasury’s

guidelines

Approved and implemented the risk management

PFMA

Developed and approved the risk register 2008/09 and 

risk mitigation action plans for all approved risks

Developed and approved the fraud prevention plan. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 7

in the legislative environment and the role of  the Leader of

Government Business.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

seamless role for the Leader of  Government Business

Business.

Service delivery achievements

Developed draft business process 

Finalised legislative programme for the year

advisers.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 8

G

oversight role. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

policy. 

Service delivery achievements

engagements.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 9

Development of  institutional memory systems for

Service delivery objectives and indicators 

of  decisions and commitments made by the principals.

Service delivery achievements

communication of  decisions and commitments made 

by the principals

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 10

Areas requiring oversight and leadership by The Presidency

development and social inclusion. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

strategy for the coordination of  administrative support 

to the Deputy President

Report on issues requiring the Deputy President’s

intervention

economy issues.
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Service delivery achievements

Developed comprehensive anti-poverty strategy

ministerial committees.

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE
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ANNEXURE 2

Communications

Purpose:

information services to enable The Presidency

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 1 

institutional memory and information management systems 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Develop and implement information management

systems

Greater integration and coordination of  information

Service delivery achievements

standards protocols 

equirements of  Access to Information Act. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 2

Institutionalisation of  a comprehensive and cohesive 

communications and public relations strategy in The 

Presidency. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Update and implement an annual integrated 

communications and public relations strategy for 

the Presidency aligned to government’s national 

communications strategy

Implement milestones in the 2008/09 internal

communications strategy

Report on evidence of  monitoring of  communications 

and media environment.

Service delivery achievements

Developed draft public relations strategy 

Developed content approval policy 

.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 3 

An effective strategy and mechanism for proactive

communication of  government policies and programmes. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Accu

government’s agenda.

Service delivery achievements

Produced quarterly report on implementation of

Presidency communications strategy

materials.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 4 

A coordinated public participation strategy and plan 

of  society in government initiatives.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

policy and events management manual/protocol 

Approve Izimbizo protocol

Draft public participation and events calendar for

2008/09.
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Service delivery achievements

Public participation strategy approved 

Events management protocol approved 

Izimbizo

Draft events manual developed.
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ANNEXURE 3

Executive Coordination

Purpose:

and ensure the implementation of  government 

programmes. The programme also provides 

strategic and administrative services to enable the

Cabinet to plan and ensure the implementation 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 1

agenda of  government. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Update MTSF for July Lekgotla

Template for year-end reports aligned to MTSF

objectives

Align annual reports and strategy plans of  departments

Quality quarterly reports promoting greater compliance 

Service delivery achievements

Updated and correlated MTSF to government priorities; 

MTSF adopted at Lekgotla and distributed 

Updated and published Programme of  Action 

Prepared summary report on alignment of  MTSF and 

MTEF

Completed report on functionality project 

Compiled annual monitoring/assessment report on 

legislative programme. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 2

Oversight and facilitation to ensure establishment and

enhancement of  coherent and integrated government

strategic planning processes and sessions.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Improve coherence in planning of  sector programmes

Provide strategic support to departments and clusters

to develop and implement programmes and monitor

implementation 

discussion of  strategic issues

Ensure oversight of  enhanced management of Makgotla

Cabinet and committees 

Improve quality of  Cabinet and committee minutes 

Report on improvements to preparation of  committee 

meetings and related inputs 

programme

of  Cabinet records

requirements.

Service delivery achievements

FOSAD and Lekgotla on the institutional machinery

linking departmental budgeting and planning 

development strategy process and prepared a report 

and planning tool 

memoranda.
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MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 3

Oversight and facilitation of  interventions to improve 

development strategies and IDPs. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

development plans

Facilitate alignment of  activities of  provincial 

executives and Cabinet

Enhance the role of  provincial secretariats.

Service delivery achievements

the reporting period. 

Held steering committee meeting to facilitate alignment 

throughout government.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 4

The provision of  strategic support to government 

programmes aimed at strengthening capacity and the 

macro-organisation of  the state. 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Report by governance and administration cluster to 

July Cabinet Lekgotla

Lekgotla report on strengthening capacity and 

organisation of  the state

Enhance leadership of  integrated strategic planning 

processes

Strengthen strategic management capacity and 

capability across government

Include approach to improving quality of  legislative 

memoranda.

Service delivery achievements

memoranda

process and process map. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 5

to The Presidency and the advisory process.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

intergovernmental cohesion 

Report on extent of  participation in 

intergovernmental cohesion processes. 

Service delivery achievements

During 2007 and 2008 the Deputy President visited 

all nine provinces to strengthen intergovernmental 

planning and M&E. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 6

institutional memory and information management systems 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Respond effectively to political requests and topical 

issues

Evaluate the Cabinet system and issue 

recommendations for improvements
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Deputy President and Minister

Provide administrative and strategic support to The 

Presidency. 

Service delivery achievements

Improved information management systems 

Published recommendations to improve Cabinet 

system

analysis of  legislative process 

Incorporated plans for institutional memory and 

information security into the business continuity plan.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 7

Service delivery objectives and indicators

document

Provide leadership and support to the development of  

a broader M&E policy platform

Reconvene the M&E coordinating forum chaired by 

PCAS

Compile annual operational plan of  all national M&E 

projects.

Service delivery achievements

Developed and published a national M&E policy

Provided leadership and support to the development

PCAS chaired M&E coordinating forum 

Compiled annual operational plan of  all national M&E 

projects. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 8

Interventions to enhance the level and quality of  executive 

oversight.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Stabilise IT platform for Programme of  Action 

system

Additional Programme of  Action cycles programmed 

and automated 

Develop a functionality report and indicators 

assessing all national departments 

South African development indicators for publication 

and distribution 

Develop draft concept note on coordinated 

geographic information system in government.

Service delivery achievements

Improved bimonthly cluster reports on Programme of  

Action guidelines

Prepared comprehensive report on functionality of  

departments 

Initialised system automation. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 9

Availability and accuracy of  information on the

implementation of  programmes and policies established. 

Database of  policies and programmes developed and 

implemented.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

children and youth 

Maintain and enhance database 

Consolidate annual report on legislation. 
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Service delivery achievements

Developed baseline data to disaggregate disability 

statistics and indicators

Prepared input on the need for departments 

to streamline and prioritise the 2008 legislative 

programme before submission to Parliament

Established baseline on legal compliance by The 

Presidency. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 10

A cohesive and coordinated agenda for nation-building 

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Finalise and implement macro-social strategic 

Finalise and implement an integrated anti-poverty 

Service delivery achievements

cohesive and coordinated agenda for nation-building: 

- Revised and developed the macro-social strategic 

- Developed the anti-poverty strategy 

coordinating special projects.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 11

Interventions and programmes supporting the macro-

Cluster system cascaded to all spheres of  government.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Report on enhanced strategic support to be given to 

departments

Facilitate implementation of  Programme of  Action 

Report on provincial cluster system and 

recommendations to strengthen it

emerging in departments

Support to political principals

Manage FOSAD effectively

Integrate decision-making to enhance Cabinet 

systems.

Service delivery achievements

Produced reports on the functionality of  the cluster 

system

Planned and coordinated meetings of  the presidential 

Presidential Advisory Council

Provinces have begun organising themselves along the 

national cluster system. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 12

Address bottlenecks in formulation and implementation of  

programmes and policies.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Propose and monitor corrective adjustments to 

Publish reporting schedule 

required

Publish an annual schedule for Makgotla planning and 

of  Makgotla reports.

Service delivery achievements

Development Institute formalised their contributions 
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Automated the bimonthly reporting cycle of  

government

Standardised the Programme of  Action.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 13

in the legislative environment and the role of  the Leader of  

Government Business.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

departments

Manage and plan RIA process integration

Support effective management of  the legislative 

programme.

Service delivery achievements

Developed guidelines for development of  RIA 

legislation 

departmental compliance 

Completed a draft political management guideline for 

legislation. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 14

Presidency’s leadership and oversight role.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Report on strengthened role of  Presidency 

Coordinate annual international programme in line 

Attend relevant international forums on governance 

to share experiences.

Service delivery achievements

facilitation by South Africa 

South Africa began chairing SADC in August 2008 

President hosted various heads of  state 

and Namibia

The President attended World Economic Forum in 

The President attended the South Africa-EU summit 

The President attended the India-Africa summit in 

The President attended the G20 meeting in 

Washington to address the global economic crisis

The President attended the G8 Summit in Japan 

foreign ministers took place at the request of  the 

Ministry of  Foreign Affairs 

after the transition

The Deputy President secured cooperation 

arrangements for the JIPSA international placement 

Comprehensive APRM programme of  action 

developed and progress report submitted in 2009.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 15

Development of  institutional memory systems for 
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Service delivery objectives and indicators

Enhance Presidency role in coordinating development 

of  guidelines for conduct of  international relations by 

all tiers of  government. 

Service delivery achievements

Improved systems for institutional memory in 

reporting and monitoring systems 

communicating decisions and commitments made by 

the principals. 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE 16

Coordinated interventions and macroeconomic approaches 

resulting in broad socioeconomic development and social 

inclusion.

Service delivery objectives and indicators

Facilitation and coordination of  initiatives supporting 

achievement of  the goal.

Service delivery achievements

Initiated regulatory reform for small businesses

African products 

and rail linked to AsgiSA

host cities 

the private sector.
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for the year ended 31 march 2009

HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT

clear picture on the underlying issues that make people leave 

For the period January 2008 to December 2008 732 days 

appointed additional to the establishment for the period 

externally to provide mainly a response handling function 

parallel to capacitating HR personnel so that they match 

up to the demands and needs of  the Branches. Units mostly 

give a clear picture of  the underlying issues that cause people 

representative task team should be informed to prepare for 

the eventual change in administration. Last minute changes 

of  staff  retention.

Staff  are leaving mostly for environments that promise 

Employees are likely to stay if  their jobs are enriched to 

and an environment that is conducive to developing their 

leadership qualities. There is a high demand for personnel 

pull factor that exists because of  The Presidency being the 

apex of  government.

In the 2008/9 year a number of new appointments were made notably in administration related fields (Table 4.2). Out of the 
84 employees who left the organisation, 22 left as a result of transfers to other departments and 22 resigned mostly because 
of better offers (Table 4.3). The levels 6-8 are the most affected and retention strategies need to be effected to counter this 
unsettling trend. 
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to regulate overtime in the Household unit. The trend in The Presidency over the years has been that the Principals and their 

Table 1.1 - Personnel costs by programme

Programme
Total Voted 
Expenditure

(R'000)

Compensation
of  Employees 
Expenditure

(R'000)

Training 
Expenditure

(R'000)

Professional
and Special 

Services 
(R'000)

Compensation
of  Employees 

as percent 
of  Total 

Expenditure

Average 
Compensation 
of  Employees 

Cost per 
Employee 

(R'000)

Employment

0 0

Pr2: Communications 0 0 332

Pr3: Executive and Policy 
Coordination

0 0 24.80

Z=Total as on Financial 
Systems (BAS) 

146,579 146,579 0 0 100.00 287 510

Table 1.2 - Personnel costs by salary band

Salary bands
Compensation
of  employees 
cost (R'000)

Percentage of  
total personnel 

cost for 
department

Average 
compensation

cost per 
employee (R)

Number of  
employees

287

287

30.78 287

287

287

Total 146,579 100.00 287 510

Table 1.3 - Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance (HOA) and medical aid by programme

Programme
Salaries
(R'000)

Salaries
as % of  

personnel 
cost

Overtime 
(R'000)

Overtime 
as % of  

personnel 
cost

HOA
 (R'000)

HOA
as % of  

personnel 
cost

Medical
ass. (R'000)

Medical
ass. as 
% of  

personnel 
cost

Total 
personnel 
cost per 

programme 
(R'000)

3.90

Pr2: Communications 0.90

Pr3: Executive and 
Policy Coordination 

4 874 2.40

Total 92,192 62.90 5,688 3.88 2,407 1.64 4,943 3.37 146,579
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Table 1.4 - Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical aid by salary band

Salary bands
Salaries
(R'000)

Salaries
as % of  

personnel 
cost

Overtime 
(R'000)

Overtime 
as % of  

personnel 
cost

HOA 
(R'000)

HOA 
as % of  

personnel 
cost

Medical
ass. 

(R'000)

Medical
ass. as 
% of  

personnel 
cost

Total 
personnel 
cost per 
salary 
band

(R'000)

3.88 3.37

3.88 3.37

Highly skilled production 
3.88 3.37

Highly skilled supervision 
3.88 3.37

Senior management 
3.88 293 3.37

Total 92,192 62.90 5,688 3.88 2,407 1.64 4,943 3.37 146,579

EMPLOYMENT

Table 2.1 - Employment and vacancies by programme at end of  period

Programme
Number of  

posts
Number of  

Vacancy rate

Number of  

additional to the 
establishment

474 4

33.3 2

8

4

Total 684 510 25.4 14

Table 2.2 - Employment and vacancies by salary band at end of  period

Salary band
Number of  

posts
Number of  

Vacancy rate

Number of  

additional to the 
establishment

2

77 8

Total 684 510 25.4 18

Table 2.3 - Employment and vacancies by critical occupation at end of  period

Critical occupations
Number of  

posts
Number of  

Vacancy rate

Number of  

additional to the 
establishment

82 29.3

9.8 0

0 0

29 0

7 0

48 0

8

0
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Table 2.3 - Employment and vacancies by critical occupation at end of  period

Critical occupations
Number of  

posts
Number of  

Vacancy rate

Number of  

additional to the 
establishment

0 0

49 0

8 0

8 4 0

3 70 0

29.4 0

2 0

3 3 0 0

7 7 0 0

0 0

0

8 20

0 0

0 0

9 30.8 0

2 0

3 0 0

72 20.9 2

80 8

Total 684 510 25.4 18

JOB EVALUATION

Table 3.1 - Job evaluation

Salary band
Number of  

posts

Number
of  jobs 

evaluated

% of  posts 
evaluated

Number of  
posts

upgraded

% of  
upgraded 

posts
evaluated

Number
of  posts 

downgraded

% of  
downgraded 

posts
evaluated

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (band A) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (band B) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (band C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (band D) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0.8 0 0 0 0

34 0 0 0 0

33 0 0 0 0

Senior management service band A 38 0 0

Senior management service band B 22 0 0 0 0

Senior management service band C 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management service band D 7 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 684 75 11 1 1.3 0 0
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African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0

Total 2 0 0 0 2

0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.3 - Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation [i.t.o PSR 1.V.C.3]

African Asian Coloured White Total

xxx 0

xxx 0

Total 0

Percentage of  total employment 0 0

African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 4.1 - Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Band

Salary Band
Employment 

at Beginning of  
Period (April 2008)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

4

28

23

9 4

3 3

7 4

Total 535 108 84 15.7
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TABLE 4.2 - Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation

Occupation
Employment 

at Beginning of  
Period (April 2008)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

23 34.8

3 0 0 0

3

Permanent 
0 0 0

2 8

7 0 0 0

4 2 2

8 83.3

29 9 0 0

0 0 0

92 3 3.3

Permanent
2 8

2

0 0 0 0

3 3 30

3 20

2 0 0

22 0 0 0

2 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

7 0 0

Policy analysis/ specialists 2

4 0 0 0

9 8

28

Total 535 108 84 15.7

TABLE 4.3 - Reasons why staff  are leaving the department

Termination Type Number
Percentage 

of  Total 
Resignations

Percentage 
of  Total 

Employment
Total

Total 
Employment

Death 0.2 84

22 84

4.9 84

22 84

0.2 84

0.9 84

7 8.3 84

Total 84 100 15.7 84 535

Resignations as % of  Employment
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TABLE 4.4 - Promotions by Critical Occupation

Occupation

Employment 
at Beginning 

of  Period 
(April 2008)

Promotions
to another 

Salary Level

Salary Level 
Promotions

as a % of  
Employment

Progressions 
to another 

Notch within 
Salary Level

Notch
progressions 

as a % of  
Employment

Administrative related 88 38 43.2

0 0 38.9

0 0

Communication and information related 0 0 4

7 0 0 0 0

Financial and related professionals 4 4 3

Finance and Economics related 3 0 0 33.3

Financial clerks and credit controllers 2 33.3

29 0 0 28

0 0 0 0

Household food and laundry services related 74 0 0

Human resources & organisat developm & relate prof  4

Human resources clerks 0 0 4 30.8

Human resources related 0 0 0 3 0

Information technology related 

Legal related 20 0 0

Librarians and related professionals 3 0 0 33.3

Library mail and related clerks 0 0

Light vehicle drivers 0 0

Logistical support personnel 22 4 9 40.9

Material-recording and transport clerks 2 0 0

Messengers porters and deliverers 0 0 0 0

Motor vehicle drivers 0 0

7 0 0

Policy analysis/ specialists 0 0 0 0 0

Policy analysis/ specialists 0 0 94.7

Risk management and security related 4 0 0 3

Secretaries & other keyboard operating clerks 8 30

Total 535 64 12 261 48.8

TABLE 4.5 - Promotions by Salary Band

Salary Band

Employment 
at Beginning 

of  Period 
(April 2008)

Promotions
to another 

Salary Level

Salary Level 
Promotions

as a % of  
Employment

Progressions 
to another 

Notch within 
Salary Level

Notch
progressions 

as a % of  
Employment

0 0

4 80 72.7

30 27

20

23 0 0 0 0

9 0 0 0 0

3 0 0 33.3

0 0 7

7 0 0

Total 535 64 12 261 48.8
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Table 5.1 - Total number of  employees (incl. employees with disabilities) per occupational category (SASCO)

Occupational
categories

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female,
 Indian

Female,
 total 

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

permanent

27 7 2 3 3 4 77

permanent 
20 0 2 22 3 29 2 2 33

2 0 0 9 2

Labourers and 
29 3 0 32 0 29 8 0 37 0

Service and sales 
0 70 2 0 72 2

Plant and machine 
operators and 

permanent 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Technicians
and associate 
professionals

34 40 0 42 4 4 7 97

Total 175 23 6 203 9 259 28 11 298 24 535

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

disabilities
3 0 4 0 0 4 0 9

Table 5.2 - Total number of  employees (incl. employees with disabilities) per occupational bands

Occupational
bands

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

permanent 
3 0 4 2 0 0 0 7

permanent
20 2 28 3 20 3 2 4

Professionally 

experienced 
specialists and 

permanent 

0 3 22 2 2

Skilled technical 
and academically 

permanent 

32 38 0 4 4 49 7 97

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 

permanent

7 70 0 2 7

Unskilled and 
20 3 0 23 0 0 23 0
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Table 5.2 - Total number of  employees (incl. employees with disabilities) per occupational bands

Occupational
bands

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

Contract (top 

permanent 
3 0 0 3 0 3 0 0 3 0

Contract (senior 

permanent 
0 0 0 2 0 4

Contract
(professionally 0 0 7 0 0 7

Contract (skilled 

permanent 
2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Contract (semi-
3 0 4 0 4 0 0 0

permanent 
9 0 0 9 0 3 0 0 23

Total 175 23 6 203 9 259 28 11 298 24 535

Table 5.3 - Recruitment

Occupational
bands

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

permanent 
4 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally 

experienced 
specialists and 

permanent 

9 2 0 0 9 2 2

Skilled technical 
and academically 

permanent 

0 0 3 0 0 28

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 

permanent 

0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and 
2 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 2 0 4

Contract (top 

permanent 
0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0

Contract (senior 

permanent 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract
(professionally 2 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 2

Contract (skilled 

permanent 
0 0 0 2 0 3

Contract (semi-
0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 4

permanent 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 41 5 0 46 0 51 5 2 58 4 108
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Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 5.4 - Promotions

Occupational
bands

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

permanent
0 0 0 0 0 0 2

permanent 
0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 4

Professionally 

experienced 
specialists and 

permanent 

2 0 8 0 0

Skilled technical 
and academically 

permanent

8 2 0 0 7 0 8 0

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 

permanent 

0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 3

Unskilled and 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (top 

permanent
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (senior 

permanent 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract
(professionally 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (Semi-
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 16 4 0 18 0 18 2 0 20 2 42

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 5.5 - Terminations

Occupational
bands

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

permanent 
4 0 2 0 2

permanent 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally 

experienced 
specialists and 

permanent 

0 0 0 9 0 0 9 0

Skilled technical 
and academically 

permanent 

9 0 0 9 9 3 0 2

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 

permanent 

3 0 0 3 0 2 0 0 2

Unskilled and 
3 0 0 3 0 7 0 0 7 0

Contract (senior 

permanent 
2 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 2 0 4

Contract
(professionally 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (skilled 

permanent 
2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3

Contract (semi-
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

permanent 
0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 34 0 2 36 2 37 3 1 39 5 84

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

action
Male, 

African
Male, 

Coloured
Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

of  alcohol
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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action
Male, 

African
Male, 

Coloured
Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

Unauthorised

insolence
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Negligence in the 
performance of  
duties

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Refusal to execute 
duties

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dereliction of  duties 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unacceptable 
behaviour

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

insolence
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fraud 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

vehicle
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Theft 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

Total 6 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 1 1 8

Table 5.7 - Skills development

Occupational
categories

Male, 
African

Male, 
Coloured

Male, 
Indian

Male, 
total

Blacks

Male, 
White

Female, 
African

Female, 
Coloured

Female, 
Indian

Female, 
total

Blacks

Female, 
White

Total

managers
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Clerks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Service and sales 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary 
occupations 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

disabilities
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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PERFORMANCE

Table 6.1 - Performance rewards by race, gender and disability

Number of  Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of  Total 

Employment
Cost (R'000)

Average 
Cost per 

(R'000)

79 242

4 33.33

3 7

89 9

8 80

93 34.70

208 30.29 902

7 28.00

4 9 44.44 33

3 30.00

Total 170 510 33.33 2,354 14

Table 6.2 - Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below senior management service

Salary Band
Number of  Total 

Employment

Percentage 
of  Total 

Employment
Cost (R'000)

Average 
Cost per 

(R'000)

4

37 33.9

49 39.2

Total 156 448 34.8 1,876 12

Table 6.3 - Performance rewards by critical occupation

Critical Occupations
Number of  Total 

Employment

Percentage 
of  Total 

Employment
Cost (R'000)

Average 
Cost per 

(R'000)

Administrative related 42

4

8.33 8 8

Communication and information related 4 88 22

Finance and economics related 37 37

Financial and related professionals 4

Financial clerks and credit controllers 8 3 3

47 34.04 88

0 0.00 0
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Table 6.3 - Performance rewards by critical occupation

Critical Occupations
Number of  Total 

Employment

Percentage 
of  Total 

Employment
Cost (R'000)

Average 
Cost per 

(R'000)

Household food and laundry services related 42

Human resources & organisat developm & relate prof  2 8 22

Human resources clerks 4 2

Information technology related 3 42

Library Mail and related clerks 4 40.00 3

Logistical Support Personnel 2 2

Material -Recording and Transport Clerks 2 2

2 3 2

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks 27

Legal related 0 3 0.00 32 0

Messengers porters and deliverers 8 9

Motor vehicle drivers 4

Senior managers 23.73 77

Total 170 510 33.33 2,354 14

Table 6.4 - Performance related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for senior management service

SMS Band
Number of  Total 

Employment

Percentage 
of  Total 

Employment
Cost (R'000)

Average 
Cost per 

(R'000)

Band A 8 37 282

Band B 

Band C 7 39 39

Band D 0 4 0.00 0 0

Total 14 62 22.58 478 34

Table 7.1 - Foreign workers by salary band

Salary 
band

Employment 
at beginning 

of  period

Percentage 
of  total

Employment 
at end of  

period

Percentage 
of  total

Change in 
employment

Percentage 
of  total

Total 
employment 
at beginning 

of  period

Total 
employment 

at end of  
period

Total 
change in 

employment

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 7.1 - Foreign workers by salary band

Major
occupation

Employment 
at beginning 

of  period

Percentage 
of  total

Employment 
at end of  

period

Percentage 
of  total

Change in 
employment

Percentage 
of  total

Total 
employment 
at beginning 

of  period

Total
employment 

at end of  
period

Total 
change in 

employment

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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LEAVE

Salary band Total days
% days with 

medical

Number of  
employees 
using sick 

leave

% of  total 
employees 
using sick 

leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated
cost (R'000)

Total number 
of  employees 

using sick 
leave

Total 
number of  
days with 
medical

94 4 30

3

production (levels 32.4 4

supervision (levels 82.2 38 3 93 88

Senior
management 32 2

Total 732 73.8 213 100 3 295 213 540

Salary band Total days
% days with 

medical

Number of  
employees 

using
disability 

leave

% of  total 
employees 

using
disability 

leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated
cost (R'000)

Total number 
of  days with 

medical

Total 
number of  
employees 

using
disability 

leave

33.3 3 3

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 20 2 23 20 3

Total 38 100 3 100 13 26 38 3

Salary band
Total days 

taken
Average days 
per employee

Number of  
employees who 

took leave

20

3040

2238

Total 9922 19 517

Salary band
Total days of  
capped leave 

taken

Average 
number of  

days taken per 
employee

Average 
capped leave 
per employee 

as at 31 

2008

Number of  
employees 
who took 

capped leave

Total 
number of  

capped leave 
available at 

2008

Number of  
employees 

as at 31 

2008

2 2 22

7 8

9 2 22 47

8 3 34 3 43

3 29 2 27

Total 80 4 38 20 7333 193
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Table 8.5 - Leave payouts

Reason
Total amount 

(R'000)
Number of  
employees

Average 
payment per 
employee (R)

3

Capped leave payouts on termination of  service for 2008/09 489 38

Current leave payout on termination of  service for 2008/09 229 20

Total 826 61 13,541

OCCUPATIONAL RISK

Table 9.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of  occupational exposure

Key steps taken to 
reduce the risk

Question Yes No

to implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of  

provide her/his name and position

*No. Key deliverable for 
2009.

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or have you 

annual budget that is available for this purpose.

3. Has the department introduced an employee assistance or 

indicate the key elements/services of  the programme.

*Counselling & support 
Service provided by an 
external source.

 4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as 

of  the members of  the committee and the stakeholder(s) 
that they represent.

*Key deliverable for 2009.

practices of  your department to ensure that these do not 
unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis of  their Yes

*Policies & Procedures of  
The Presidency do not 
discriminate against HIV 
and Aids infected and 
affected people.  

positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive 

measures.

Yes
held to educate & sensitise 
staff  around HIV and 
AIDS issues.

 7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo 

you have achieved.
Yes

*Voluntary counselling & 

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to 
monitor & evaluate the impact of  your health promotion 

No. We have not been 
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LABOUR RELATIONS

Table 10.1 - Collective agreements

Subject matter

None N/A

Outcomes of  disciplinary hearings Number Percentage of  total Total

Total 4 100 4

Table 10.3 - Types of  misconduct addressed and disciplinary hearings

Type of  misconduct Number
Percentage of  

Total by type of  
misconduct

Total

Breach of  security regulations 0 0.0 0

0 0.0 0

Negligence in the performance of  duties 0 0.0 0

Dereliction of  duties

Unacceptable behaviour 0 0.0 0

0 0.0 0

Theft 4 4

Total 8 42.72 8

Number of  grievances addressed Number Percentage of  total Total

Not resolved 

Total 9 48.05 9

Number of  disputes addressed Number % of  total

Upheld 0 0

3 16.02

Total 3 16.02
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Table 10.6 - Strike actions

Strike actions _

3

Total cost(R'000) of  working days lost 18

Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of  no work no pay 18

Table 10.7 - Precautionary suspensions

Precautionary suspensions _

Number of  people suspended 2

2

Average number of  days suspended 

Cost (R'000) of  suspensions 329

Occupational categories Employment Learnerships

Skills
programmes 

and other 
short courses

Other forms 
of  training

Total

Female

Male 9

Professionals Female 29

Male 9 24

Technicians and associate professionals Female 23

Male 8

Clerks Female 20

Male 9 3

Female 0

Male 4

Plant and machine operators and 
assemblers 

Female 0

Male 2 7

Female

Male 8

93

Gender subtotals Female 72

Male 48 89

93
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Table 11.2 - Training provided

Occupational categories Employment Learnerships

Skills
programmes 

and other 
short courses

Other forms 
of  training

Total

Female 

Male 9 9

Professionals Female 

Male 32

Technicians and associate professionals Female 

Male

Clerks Female 20 20 40

Male 3 3

Female 0 0 0

Male 2

Plant and machine operators and 
assemblers 

Female 2

Male 2 2 4

Female 2

Male

Other Females 4 4 8

Males 2 2 4

Gender subtotals Female 

Male 43 43

Total 99 99 198

Table 12.1 - Injury on duty

Nature of  injury on duty Number % of  total

Required basic medical attention only 0 0

Temporary total disablement 0 0

Permanent disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 0 0

CONSULTANTS

Table 13.1 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds

Project title

Total number of  
consultants that 
worked on the 

project

Contract value in 
Rand

HR service delivery model 7

Total number of  projects
Total individual 

consultants work days
Total contract value 

in Rand

7
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Project title
Percentage 

groups

Percentage 
management by 

Number of  
consultants from 

work on the project

HR service delivery model

Table 13.3 - Report on consultant appointments using donor funds

Project Title

Total number of  
consultants that 
worked on the 

project
value in Rand

N/A N/A N/A

Total number of  projects
Total individual 

consultants work days
Total contract value 

in Rand

Nil N/A N/A N/A

Project title
Percentage 

groups

Percentage 
management by 

Number of  
consultants from 

work on the project

Nil N/A N/A
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY AND PARLIAMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

1. GENERAL REVIEW OF STATE OF 

FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

under tremendous pressure in the reporting period due 

to unforeseeable events of  change of  leadership.  This 

appropriated. It has become apparent that the role of  

coordination of  policy initiatives and nation building that 

the Presidency plays calls for a different model for funding its 

and additional costs relating to having an additional 

Minister in the Presidency and his ministerial support 

staff;

change of  political principals in September 2008.

Dynamic Survey 

Presidency.

to March 2009 due to the Elections and the Inauguration 

Ceremony; Unforeseen administrative costs relating to 

in international events. 

compensation budget are mainly attributed to the fact that 

norm.

FOR THE 2008/2009 FISCAL YEAR

R’000 R’000 R’000

Description 2008/2009 2007/2008
Increase/   
Decrease 

Budget allocation

Statutory allocation

Total budgeted 
allocation

 316,735  274,320  42,415 

During the 2008/09 Adjustments Estimate process The 

Presidency received:

and outstanding commitments relating to administrative 

costs;

unexpected increase in administrative capacity and for 

increase.

The Statement of  Financial Performance indicates actual 

Notes to the Financial Statement.

R’000 R’000 R’000

To pro-
gramme

Amount
From pro-
gramme

Amount
 Appro-
priation

%

Programme 2

Programme 3 Programme 2 8.0

Total 3,935 3,935

2. SERVICES RENDERED BY THE 

DEPARTMENT

Services are not rendered directly to the public. The 

Presidency’s overall Mandate and Core Business is to 

Deputy President and Minister in the execution of  their 

of  government.

116



for the year ended 31 march 2009

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY AND PARLIAMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

Inventories

Stationery

Cleaning materials

3. CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS

Presidency added an additional burden to the already 

unexpected change in the administration that occurred in 

government resulted in the use of  pre-programmed funds

being diverted to support the administrative requirements 

Minister. 

ensure that The Presidency’s coordinating and monitoring 

functions are not adversely affected and compromised by 

4. UTILISATION OF DONOR FUNDS

Programme Fund at the end of  March 2009.

5. PUBLIC ENTITIES

The National Youth Commission (NYC) receives transfer 

payments from The Presidency to conduct its affairs.  

human rights.  

The Commission is established under the National Youth 

tranches.

6. ORGANISATIONS TO WHICH TRANSFER 

PAYMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE

to the Isigodlo Trust and the South African Chapter on the 

African Renaissance respectively.  The organisations carry

out programmes supporting government’s African agenda

and its socio-economic development programmes.

7. PUBLIC/PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS (PPP)

The Presidency is participating in a public/private 

for national government by the National Department

of  Transport.  This Agreement is a (Transport) Full 

Maintenance Lease Transversal contract regulated by the 

National Treasury’s PPP and Supply Chain Management

and chauffeur-driven vehicles.

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

ARRANGEMENTS

Risk management and corporate governance

Plan have been adopted by The Presidency. A Disaster 

Recovery Plan has been implemented.

Heads and responsibility managers of  Senior Management 
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Presidency’s performance against its stated objectives and 

remedial action is monitored at the monthly meetings.

Effectiveness of  internal audit and audit 

committee

under the control and direction of  an Audit Committee. 

Up until 2007/08 the Internal Audit Unit functioned on a 

co-sourced basis. With the departure of  the head of  internal 

audit in March 2008 the Internal Audit Unit functioned 

appointed in November 2008.

according to an approved charter and performed audits 

Internal Audit Unit is independent and no limitation is 

placed on the access to information.  The accountability 

and reporting structure of  the unit is properly established 

and regular feedback is provided to the Audit Committee.

9. DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES/ACTIVITIES

TO BE DISCONTINUED

operations and a National Youth Development Agency has 

been formed through the amalgamation of  the National 

Youth Commission and the Umsobombvu Youth Fund. 

10. NEW/PROPOSED ACTIVITIES

portfolios:

b. Minister for Performance Monitoring & Evaluation

The President has decided to establish a National Planning 

located in and led by The Presidency.  The NPC and 

by administrative and technical infrastructure in The 

ordination and Advisory Services (PCAS) branch. 

The Minister for National Planning is the executing Authority 

Performance Monitoring and Evaluation is the Executing 

Authority for the National Youth Development Agency 

(NYDA) in addition to Government Communications and 

Information System (GCIS).

11. ASSET MANAGEMENT

Management team.

set out in the PFMA and Treasury Regulations by maintaining 

records on the Basic Accounting System.

cost of  the asset;

maintained.

the asset management guidelines;

2. the training of  staff  and transfer of  skills of  asset 

management personnel;

3. the appointment of  Asset Controllers.

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY AND PARLIAMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA
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12. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

13. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

the implementation of  the strategic agenda of  government. 

integrated service delivery. The core of  The Presidency’s 

desired outcomes seem not to be achieved;

or access to other required resources.

14. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

None.

15. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AUDIT REPORT

The Presidency has instituted various processes to address

the issues raised by the Auditor General in the 2007/08 

Audit Report.  Changes have been made to rectify the asset 

register and the corresponding opening balance for 2008/09.

details on The Presidency’s asset management can be found 

16. EXEMPTIONS AND DEVIATIONS 

RECEIVED FROM THE NATIONAL 

TREASURY

The National Treasury approved the reduction of  

earmarked funds allocated to the National Development 

Spatial Perspective to enable The Presidency to defray 

excess expenditure under goods and services.

17. OTHER

None

18. APPROVAL

Mr Trevor Fowler
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The audit committee consists of  the members listed 

hereunder and should meet four (4) times per annum as per 

its approved terms of  reference. During the current year 

Name of  Member
Number of  
Meetings
Attended

07

02

Mr George Negota

04

Ms Lorraine François (appointed 02 March 2009)

Audit Committee Responsibility

of  Section 38(1)(a) of  the Public Finance Management 

Treasury Regulation 3.1.  We 

The effectiveness of  internal control

auditors and the Auditor-General South Africa.  In certain 

fully and satisfactorily addressed.

PFMA.

quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Accounting 

Evaluation of  Financial Statements

We have: 

the Auditor-General South Africa and the Accounting 

management report and management’s response 

thereto;

and regulatory provisions

audit.

Auditor-General South Africa.

Internal audit

effectively and that it has covered the risks pertinent to 

the department in its audits in terms of  their annual audit 

plan.

ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

Chairperson of  the Audit Committee
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
to parliament on the financial statements

INTRODUCTION

2.

and in the manner required by the Public Finance 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

3.

my responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

4.

General 

Notice 616 of  2008 Government Gazette No. 

31057 of  15 May 2008. Those standards require that 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

misstatement.

 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 

but not for the purpose of  expressing an opinion on 

the effectiveness of  the entity’s internal control.  An 

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of  

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of  

statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 

audit opinion. 

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Capital assets

7.

evidence as to the current year adjustments to prior year 

and other machinery and equipment due to the absence 

of  supporting documentation. Due to inadequate 

records did not permit the application of  alternative 

due to an understatement of  the prior year accruals.  I 

further could not determine the completeness of  the asset 

on the asset register and the absence of  documentation 

and minor assets as disclosed in notes 30 and 30.3 to the 

8.
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required by the PFMA.

Emphasis of  matters 

Basis of  accounting

9.

Unauthorised expenditure  

Irregular expenditure

Other matters

The governance principles that impact the auditor’s 

responsibilities and practices exercised by the accounting 

of  an effective system of  internal control. (The number 

more than one internal control component.

PAR.
NO.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED
OPINION

CE RA CA IC M

7 Capital assets

The department did not adequately identify and 

monitor the pertinent information and the processes 
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to parliament on the financial statements

CE = Control environment

reporting.

2

3

4

7

RA = Risk assessment

2

3

4

The potential for material misstatement due to fraud is not considered.

CA = Control activities

There is inadequate segregation of  duties to prevent fraudulent data and asset misappropriation.

General information technology controls have not been designed to maintain the integrity of  the information system and the security of  

the data.
2

accurately processed.
3

4

7

IC = Information and communication

Information required to implement internal control is not available to personnel to enable internal control responsibilities. 2

Communications do not enable and support the understanding and execution of  internal control processes and responsibilities by 

personnel.
3

M = Monitoring

reporting.

2

3

Key governance responsibilities

No. Matter Y N

Clear trail of  supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely manner
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No. Matter Y N

2.

3.

4.

Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and governance practices

Audit committee

7. Internal audit

8.
management.

9.

documented and used as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2.

Issues relating to the reporting of  performance information

Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy and completeness of  
reported performance information.

There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses are only paid after proper assessment and 

statements.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Report on performance information
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performance information

as required by section 40(3)(a) of  the PFMA to ensure 

fairly present the performance against predetermined 

objectives of  the department.

General Notice 616 of  

2008 Government Gazette No. 31057 of  15 May 

2008.

In terms of  the foregoing my engagement included 20.

performing procedures of  an audit nature to obtain 

procedures. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgement.

OTHER REPORTS

Special audits

22.

upon procedures relating to donor funding received 

Status of  Disabled Persons (OSDP): Economic 

APPRECIATION

The assistance rendered by the staff  of  the Presidency 23.

during the audit is sincerely appreciated.

Pretoria

4 September 2009

for the year ended 31 march 2009

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
to parliament on the financial statements

125



for the year ended 31 march 2009

annexures to the annual financial statements

2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted
appro

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

1. Administration

Current payment - 200 379

Transfers and subsidies - 980 4 478

Payment for capital 
assets

-

2. Communications

Current payment 23 079 - 20 422

Transfers and subsidies - - - - - - - - -

Payment for capital 
assets

- 47 -

3.
Executive 
coordination

Current payment -

Transfers and subsidies 24 333 - - 24 333 24 344

Payment for capital 
assets

- 204 - 234

Subtotal 311 735 - -

Statutory 
appropriation

Current payment 3 999 - - 3 999 3 999 -

Transfers and subsidies - - - - -

TOTAL 316 735 - - 316 735 331 246 (14 511) 104.6%   274 320  266 516

Reconciliation with Statement of  Financial Performance

Departmental revenue 233 289

Local and foreign aid assistance received 4 342

Actual amounts per Statements of  Financial 
Performance (total revenue)

321 310 277 729

Local and foreign aid assistance 8 207

Actual amounts per Statements of  Financial Performance (Total 
expenditure)

339 453 267 626

for the year ended 31 march 2009

appropriation statement
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APPROPRIATION PER ECONOMIC CLASSIFICATION

2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted

 Appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments

Compensation of  employees -

Goods and services -

Transfers and subsidies 

Provinces and municipalities - - 2 2 2 - 2 2

Departmental agencies and 
accounts

28 333 - - 28 333 28 333 -

Public corporations and 
private enterprises

- (2) 94

Households 24 - 980

Payments for capital 
assets

Machinery and equipment - -

intangible assets
- - - - - - - 339

Total 311 735 - - 311 735 326 246 (14 511) 104.7% 272 101 264 200

STATUTORY APPROPRIATION

2008/09 2007/08

against the National 
Revenue Fund 

Adjusted
appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

President and Deputy 
President salaries

- - -

Total 5 000 - - 5 000 5 000 - 100% 2 219 2 316

STATUTORY APPROPRIATION PER ECONOMIC CLASSIFICATION

2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted
appro-   

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payment

Compensation of  employees 3 999 - - 3 999 3 999 -

Transfers and subsidies 

Households - - - - -

Total 5 000 - - 5 000 5 000 - 100% 2 219 2 316

for the year ended 31 march 2009

appropriation statement
detail per programme 1 - administration
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2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted

appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Minister

Current payment - 890 -

Transfers and 
subsidies

- - - - -

Management

Current payment -

Transfers and subsidies - 478

Payment for capital 
assets

- - 3 907

1.3 Support Services to 
President

Current payment - 32 934 39 773 27 094 27 094

Transfers and subsidies 4 000 - - 4 000 4 009 (9) 4 000 4 000

Payment for capital 
assets

- (379) 42 33

1.4 Support Services to  

Current payment - -

Transfers and subsidies - - - - - -

Payment for capital 
assets - - - - -

Total 200 179 - (2 131) 198 048 212 012 (13 964) 107.1% 168 616 162 186

2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted
appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payment

Compensation of  employees - 98 280 98 280 -

Goods and services - -

Transfers and subsidies 

Provinces and municipalities - - 2 2 2 - 2 2

Departmental agencies and 
accounts

4 000 - - 4 000 4 000 - 4 000 4 000

Public corporations and 
private enterprises

- (2) 94

Households 24 - 980

Payment  for  capital 
assets

for the year ended 31 march 2009

appropriation statement
detail per programme 1 - administration
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2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted
appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Machinery and equipment - 4 349

intangible assets
- - - - - - - 492 339

Total 200 179 - (2 131) 198 048 212 012 (13 964) 107.1% 168 616 162 186

2008/09 2007/08

Programme per 
sub-programme

Adjusted
appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Communications

Current payment 23 079 - 20 422

Transfers and subsidies - - - - - - - - -

Payment for capital 
assets

- 47 -

Total 23 132 - (1 804) 21 328 20 522 806 96.2% 17 065 16 195

2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted
appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payment

Compensation of  employees - (4 074)

Goods and services - 2 223 8 478 8 478 -

Payment  for  capital 
assets

Machinery and equipment - 47 -

Total 23 132 - (1 804) 21 328 20 522 806 96.2% 17 065 16 195

for the year ended 31 march 2009

appropriation statement
detail per programme 2 - communications
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2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted
appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as 

% of  

appro-
priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

3.1 Policy coordination

Current payment - 40 294 40 294 -

Transfers and 
subsidies

- - - - - - - - -

Payment for capital 
assets

- - 34

3.2
and children

Current payment -

Transfers and 
subsidies

- - - - - -

Payment for capital 
Assets

- - - - -

3.3

Current payment - -

Transfers and 
subsidies

- - - - - - - - -

Payment for capital 
Assets

- - 200 200

3.4 National Youth 
Commission

Transfers and 
subsidies 24 333 - - 24 333 24 333 -

Total 88 424 - 3 935 92 359 93 712 (1 353) 101.5% 86 420 85 819

2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted
appro-

priation

Shifting
of  funds

Virement
Final

appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-    
ture as % of  

priation

Final
appro-

priation

Actual
expendi- 

ture

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payment

Compensation of  employees - -

Goods and services - (2 343)

Transfers and subsidies 

Departmental agencies and 
accounts

24 333 - - 24 333 24 333 -

Households - - - -

Payment  for  capital 
assets

Machinery and equipment - 204 - 234 234

intangible assets
- - - - - - - -

Total 88 424 - 3 935 92 359 93 712 (1 353) 101.5% 86 420 85 819

for the year ended 31 march 2009

appropriation statement
detail per programme 3 - executive coordination
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1. Detail of  transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Statements.

3. Explanations of  material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

3.1  Per Programme Final Appropriation
Actual

Expenditure
Variance  

R’000
Variance as a % of  

Final Appropriation

Programme 2:Communications

Programme 3:ExecutiveCo-Ordination

The overspending can be mainly attributed to: 

Inauguration Ceremony.

(3) Costs relating to the additional Minister in the Presidency and his support staff.

(4) Unforeseen and unavoidable leave gratuity payments incurred due to the change of  political principals in September 

2008.

Communications

The overspending can be mainly attributed to expenditure incurred to attend the UN Convention on Rights of  Persons 

carried by the UN.

Final Appropriation
Actual

Expenditure
Variance

Variance as a % of  
Final Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payment:

Compensation of  employees

Goods and services

Transfers and subsidies:

Provinces and municipalities 2 2 - -

Departmental agencies and accounts 28 333 28 333 - -

Public corporations and private enterprises 94

Households

Payments for capital assets:

Machinery and equipment

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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Note
2008/09 2007/08

R'000 R'000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1

Statutory appropriation 2

Departmental revenue 3 233 289

Aid assistance 4 4 342

TOTAL REVENUE

321 310 277 729

Current expenditure

Compensation of  employees 5

Goods and services 6

Aid assistance 4 8 207

Total current expenditure 302 007 237 517

Transfers and subsidies 7 30 576 25 092

Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible capital assets 8

8 - 339

Total expenditure for capital assets 6 870 5 017

339 453 267 626

(18 143) 10 103

Reconciliation of  surplus for the year

Voted funds 7 804

Departmental revenue 15 233 289

Aid assistance 4

(18 143) 10 103

for the year ended 31 march 2009

statement of financial performance
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Note
2008/09 2007/08

R'000 R'000

ASSETS

Current assets 42 773 12 960

Unauthorised expenditure 9

Cash and cash equivalents 10

Prepayments and advances 12

Receivables 13 8 733

Non-current assets 17 25

11

TOTAL ASSETS 42 790 12 985

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 42 723 12 962

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 14 7 804

Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 15 23

Bank overdraft 16 -

Payables 17

Aid assistance unutilised 4 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 42 723 12 962

NET ASSETS 67 23

Represented by:

Recoverable revenue 23

TOTAL 67 23

for the year ended 31 march 2009

statement of financial position

133



Note
2008/09 2007/08

R'000 R'000

Recoverable revenue

Opening balance 23 -

Transfers:

Debts recovered (included in departmental revenue) 44 23

Closing balance 67 23

TOTAL 67 23

for the year ended 31 march 2009

statement of changes in net assets
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Note
2008/09 2007/08

R'000 R'000

Receipts

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1

Statutory appropriated funds received

Departmental revenue received 3 233

Aid assistance received 4 4 342

Surrendered to Revenue Fund

Current payments

Transfers and subsidies paid

18 (36 428) (389)

Payments for capital assets

Proceeds from sale of  capital assets 3 - 32

8 (7)

(6 862) (4 992)

Increase in net assets 44 -

44 -

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of  the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of  period 19 (43 001) 245

for the year ended 31 march 2009

cash flow statement
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The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance 

has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of  the Financial 

1. PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS

1.1 Basis of  preparation

1.2 Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of  the South 

department.

1.3 Rounding

to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

Prior period comparative information has been presented 

Statement

appropriation statement.

2. REVENUE

2.1 Appropriated funds

the date the appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments 

to the appropriated funds made in terms of  the adjustments 

date the adjustments become effective.

Total appropriated funds are presented in the statement of  

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the 

in the statement of  Financial Position.

2.2 Statutory Appropriation

records on the date the appropriation becomes effective.  

Adjustments to the statutory appropriations made in terms of  

records on the date the adjustments become effective.

Total statutory appropriations are presented in the statement 

of  Financial Performance.  

Unexpended statutory appropriations are surrendered to the 

in the Statement of  Financial Position.

for the year ended 31 march 2009

accounting policies
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All departmental revenue is paid into the National Revenue

are recognised in the Statement of  Financial Position.

Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the 

2.3.1 Sales of  goods and services other than capital 

assets

The proceeds received from the sale of  goods and/or the

provision of  services are recognised in the Statement of

2.3.2 Fines, penalties & forfeits

penalties and forfeits is recognised in the Statement of

2.3.3 Interest, dividends and rent on land

received.

2.3.4 Sale of  capital assets

The proceeds received on sale of  capital assets are recognised 

received.

2.3.5 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Repayments of  loans and advances previously extended

to employees and public corporations for policy purposes

are recognised as revenue in the Statement of  Financial 

Performance on receipt of  the funds.  

Cheques issued in previous accounting periods that expire 

before being banked are recognised as revenue in the Statement 

When the cheque is reissued the payment is made from 

Revenue.

Forex gains are recognised on payment of  funds.

2.3.6 Transfers received (including gifts, donations 

and sponsorships) 

National Revenue Fund and recorded as revenue in the 

receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure 

2.4 Aid assistance

from the donor(s).  

All in-kind local and foreign aid assistance is disclosed at fair 

The cash payments made during the year relating to local and 

foreign aid assistance projects are recognised as expenditure

in the Statement of  Financial Performance. The value of

the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of  the funds is

Position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using local and foreign

aid assistance and any unutilised amounts are recognised as

payables in the Statement of  Financial Position.

3. EXPENDITURE

3.1 Compensation of  employees

for the year ended 31 march 2009

accounting policies
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March of  each year). Capitalised compensation forms part 

of  the expenditure for capital assets in the Statement of  

Financial Performance.  

or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure 

recognised in the Statement of  Financial Performance or 

Position.

funded by both employer and employee contributions. 

Employer contributions (i.e. social contributions) to the fund 

of  the employer department.

employees. Employer contributions to the medical funds are 

year).

recognised as an expense in the Statement of  Financial 

authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no 

are recognised as an expense in the Statement of  Financial 

authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no 

or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure 

recognised in the Statement of  Financial Performance or 

Position.

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as 

goods and services.

3.3 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

made for irrecoverable amounts but amounts are disclosed 

as a disclosure note.

Forex losses are recognised on payment of  funds.

All other losses

been granted for the recognition thereof.

3.4 Transfers and subsidies

3.5 Unauthorised expenditure

such time as the expenditure is either approved by the 

for the year ended 31 march 2009

accounting policies
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Performance.

the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related 

the date of  approval.

3.6 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

expenditure is recovered from the responsible person or

Performance.

3.7 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the

Statement of  Financial Performance.  If  the expenditure is 

not condoned by the relevant authority a receivable is raised 

to the extent that it is legally enforceable and recoverable.   

3.8 Expenditure for capital assets

Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an 

4. ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of  

Financial Position at cost.  

short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

Financial Position at cost.

4.3 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the

made.

Pre-payments and advances outstanding at the end of  the 

year are carried in the Statement of  Financial Position at 

cost.

4.4 Receivables

Receivables included in the Statement of  Financial Position 

arise from cash payments made that are recoverable from

another party.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the 

statement of  Financial Position at cost plus accrued

interest.

4.5 Inventory

at cost in the notes.

4.6 Capital assets

4.6.1 Movable assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of  the item at cost.  

movable capital asset is stated at fair value. Where fair value 

Subsequent expenditure of  a capital nature is recorded in 

department on completion of  the project.  

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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4.6.2 Immovable assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of  the item at cost.  Cost 

has been reliably estimated.

Work-in-progress of  a capital nature is recorded in the 

is included in the asset register of  the department that legally 

5. LIABILITIES

5.1 Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue 

Fund

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the 

in the Statement of  Financial Position

the Revenue Fund

Financial Position at cost.

5.3 Bank overdraft

The bank overdraft is carried in the Statement of  Financial 

Position at cost.

5.4 Payables

other governmental entities.  These payables are recognised 

at historical cost in the Statement of  Financial Position.  

5.5 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes.

5.6 Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the Statement of  

Financial Position as a liability or as expenditure in the 

Statement of  Financial Performance but are included in 

the disclosure notes.

5.7 Accruals

Accruals are not recognised in the Statement of  Financial 

Position as a liability or as expenditure in the Statement of  

Financial Performance but are included in the disclosure 

notes.

or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure 

recognised in the Statement of  Financial Performance or 

the Statement of  Financial Position.

5.9 Lease commitments

Finance leases

Finance leases are not recognised as assets and liabilities in 

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in 

commitments are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the 

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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for the year ended 31 march 2009

accounting policies

6. RECEIVABLES FOR DEPARTMENTAL

REVENUE

Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the 

7. NET ASSETS

7.1 Capitalisation reserve

or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period but

repayment or recovery of  such amounts.

7.2 Recoverable revenue

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

is included in the disclosure notes.

9. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Compensation paid to key management personnel including 

disclosure notes.

10. PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS

and current and capital expenditure relating to the PPP

arrangement is included in the disclosure notes.
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for the year ended 31 march 2009

1. ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

1.1 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of  the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National

Departments (Voted funds) :

Final
appropriation

Actual funds
received

Funds not

not received

Appropriation
received
2007/08

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration -

Communications -

Executive Co-ordination -

Total 311 735 311 735 - 272 101

2 STATUTORY APPROPRIATION

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

President and Deputy President’s salaries

Total 5 000 2 219

Actual statutory appropriation received 2 455 2 219

3. DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Sales of  goods and services other than capital assets 3.1

3.2 4

Sales of  capital assets 3.3 - 32

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 3.4 97

Departmental revenue collected 233 289

3.1 Sales of  goods and services other than capital assets

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Sales of  goods and services produced by the department 99

Sales by market establishment 78 -

Other sales 99

Total 132 104

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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for the year ended 31 march 2009

3.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Interest received 4

Total 4 19

3.3 Sale of  capital assets

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Other capital assets - 32

Total - 32

3.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Receivables 40 -

Forex gain -

-

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue

Total 97 134

4. AID ASSISTANCE

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000   R’000

Foreign

Opening balance

Revenue 4 342

Expenditure Annex 1F (8 207)

     Current (8 207)

Closing balance - 3 865

4.2 Total assistance

Opening balance

Revenue 4 342

Expenditure (8 207)

Current (8 207)

Capital - -

Closing balance - 3 865
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Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Analysis of  balance

Local and foreign aid unutilised -

Closing balance - 3 865

5. COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

5.1 Salaries and wages

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Basic salary

Service based 3

Compensative/circumstantial 9 348 9 807

Periodic payments

Total 134 570 110 364

5.2 Social contributions

Employer contributions

Pension 8 898

Medical 4 943

Bargaining council

Total 16 008 13 102

Total compensation of  employees 150 578 123 466

Average number of  employees 510 501

6. GOODS AND SERVICES

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 93

Advertising

6.1

Bursaries (employees)

Catering

Communication

Computer services 6.2

6.3

Entertainment -

Audit cost - external 6.4 777

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Inventory 6.5 4 988

Lease payments

Travel and subsistence 6.6

Venues and facilities 4 987

Other operating expenditure 6.7 3 343

Total 143 222 112 941

6.1 Assets less than R5 000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Tangible assets

Machinery and equipment

Intangible assets -

Total 4 110 2 648

6.2 Computer services

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

SITA computer services

External computer service providers 3 000 23

Total 4 891 1 676

6.3 Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Business and advisory services

Legal costs

Contractor

Agency and support/outsourced services 27 872

Total 38 411 32 599

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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6.4 Audit cost – External

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Regularity audits 729

Other audits 48

Total 1 616 777

6.5 Inventory

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Food and food supplies

Other consumable materials

Stationery and printing 3 799

Total 6 275 4 988

6.6 Travel and subsistence

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Local

Foreign 20 343

Total 52 598 40 102

6.7 Other operating expenditure

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Resettlement costs

Other

Total 2 866 3 343

7. TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Provinces and municipalities Annex 1A 2 2

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B 28 333

Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1C

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Households 2 230

Total 30 576 25 092

8. EXPENDITURE FOR CAPITAL ASSETS

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Tangible assets

Machinery and equipment

- 339

- 339

Total 6 870 5 017

9. UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

9.1 Reconciliation of  unauthorised expenditure

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Opening balance

-

-

Current expenditure - (2 569)

17 078 2 567

9.2 Analysis of  Current Unauthorised expenditure

Incident Overspending of  the main vote
2007/08

R’000

Overspending of  the main vote

Total 14  511
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10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account -

Cash on hand

4

Total 58 245

11. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Non-current

Local

Staff  debts

Total 17 25

12. PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Travel and subsistence 49

Advances paid to other entities 2 282

Total 2 331 1 415

13. RECEIVABLES

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note
Less than 
one year

One to three 
years

Older than 
three years

Total Total

Claims recoverable 13.1 Annex 4 24

Staff  debt 13.2

Other debtors 13.3 4 999

Total 15 018 6 139 2 149 23 306 8 733
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13.1 Claims recoverable

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

National departments 779

National Treasury

Public Works 29

DPSA 2 7

Department of  Foreign Affairs

Department of  Social Development -

SARS -

Minerals & Energy - 29

South African Police Service -

Statistics South Africa -

Transport -

Public entities -

Universities and technikons 400 -

Total 14 765 1 029

13.2 Staff  debt

Note
2007/08 2006/07

R’000 R’000

Debt account

Salary accounts

Travel

Total 3 059 2 471

13.3 Other debtors

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Theft & Losses

Total 5 482 5 233

14. VOTED FUNDS TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

Note
2007/08 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 7 804

7 804

Add:  Unauthorised expenditure for current year -

Funds not requested/not received -

Paid during the year (7 804)

Closing balance (2 545) 7 804

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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notes to the annual financial statements

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Funds not requested -

Total 2 545 -

15. DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 23

Transfer from Statement of  Financial Performance 233 289

Paid during the year

Closing balance 15 23

16. BANK OVERDRAFT

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account -

Total 43 059 -

17. PAYABLES – CURRENT

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Description Notes Total Total

Clearing accounts 17.1

Other payables 17.2 - 274

Total 1 932 262 2 194 1 270

151



for the year ended 31 march 2009

notes to the annual financial statements

17.1 Clearing accounts

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Description

Salary deduction 77 20

Other payables

Total 2 001 996

17.2 Other payables

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Description

Outstanding payments

Cheques payable -

Persal EBT account 94

Third Party Transport cont acc -

Total 193 274

18. NET CASH FLOW AVAILABLE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances

Decrease in other current assets -

924

Proceeds from sale of  capital assets - (32)

Expenditure on capital assets

Surrenders to Revenue Fund

Voted funds not requested/not received -

(36 428) (389)

19. RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR CASH FLOW PURPOSES

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account

Cash on hand

4

Total (43 001) 245
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These amounts are not recognised in the Annual Financial Statements and are disclosed to enhance the usefulness of  the

Annual Financial Statements.

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Liable to Nature

Motor vehicle guarantees Employees Annex 2A 98 98

Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 2A 309 309

Claims against the department Annex 2B

Annex 4

Other Annex 2B 9 240

Total 15 928 34 379

21. COMMITMENTS

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Current expenditure

Approved and contracted

Capital expenditure

Approved and contracted 779

779

Total Commitments 15 944 14 654

22. ACCRUALS

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Total Total

Goods and services 380 930 3 894

Machinery and equipment 33 397

Total 1 184 413 1 597 4 291

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level

Administration

Communications

Executive Co-Ordination 209

Total 1 597 4 291

Annex 4

Total 1 573 62

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Leave entitlement 3 708

Thirteenth cheque

-

Capped leave commitments 4 904

Total 16 646 11 537

24. LEASE COMMITMENTS

24.1 Finance leases**

2008/09 Land
Buildings and 

structures

Machinery and 
Total R’000

- -

- -

Total lease commitments - -

- - 883 883

Total present value of  lease liabilities - - 3 675 3 675

2007/08 Land
Buildings and 

structures

Machinery and 
Total R’000

- -

- -

Total lease commitments - - 2 406 2 406

- -

Total present value of  lease liabilities - - 1 994 1 994

**This note excludes leases relating to public private partnership as they are separately disclosed to note no.28.
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25. RECEIVABLES FOR DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Sales of  capital assets 70 -

Closing Balance 70 -

25.1 Analysis of  receivables for departmental revenue

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Add: amounts recognised 70 -

Closing Balance 70 -

26. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

26.1 Reconciliation of  irregular expenditure

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 2 284

Less: Amounts condoned -

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation -

Current year

Prior years 2 284

Total 27 179 2 659

Incident
2008/09

R’000

Incident

Non Compliance Investigation in process

Transfer-National Youth Commission 24 333

Total 24 520

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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27. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

No. of  individuals
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

6

6

4 2 427 880

Family members of  key management personnel - -

Total 14 406         10 204

28. PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

This agreement is a full maintenance lease transversal contract regulated by the national Treasury PPP and supply chain 

Fleet consultancy services

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Current Expenditure

Finance leases

Total 6 827 13 473

29. PROVISIONS

Note
2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Private enterprises - 20

Staff  debtors 84 -

Other debtors

Total 3 105 70
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30. MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Opening
balance

Current year 
adjustments
to prior year 

balances

Additions
Closing
balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 25 967 (10 675) 7 140 - 22 432

Transport assets - -

Computer equipment -

-

Other machinery and equipment 80 -

TOTAL MOVOO ABLE TANGIBLEVV
CAPITAL ASSETS

25 967 (10 675) 7 140 - 22 432

30.1 Additions

Cash Non-cash
(Capital work 

in progress 
current costs)

Received 
current, not 

paid
(paid current 
year, received 

prior year)

Total

COST FAIR VALUE COST COST COST

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 6 870 - - 270 7 140

Computer equipment - -

- -

Other machinery and equipment 242 - - (397)

TOTAL 6 870 - - 270 7 140
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30.2 Movement for 2007/08

Opening
balance

Additions Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

21 321 4 678 32 25 967

Transport assets 32

Computer equipment -

-

Other machinery and equipment - -

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE ASSETS 21 321 4 678 32 25 967

30.3 Minor assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage assets
Machinery and 

Biological assets Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Minor  assets - - -

TOTAL - - 9 714 - 9 714

Intangible 
assets

Heritage assets
Machinery and 

Biological assets Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Number of  minor  assets - - -

TOTAL - - 11 510 - 11 510
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31. INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

MARCH 2009

Opening
balance

Current year 
adjustments
to prior year 

balances

Additions Closing balance

Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE - - -

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1 223 (1 223) - - -

31.1 Movement for 2007/08

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 

MARCH 2008

Opening
balance

Additions
Closing
balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 884 339 -

TOTAL 884 339 - 1 223

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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ANNEXURE 1A

TRANSFER SPENT 2007/08

Amount
Roll

overs
Adjust-
ments

Total
avail-
able

Actual
transfer

% of  
avail-
able 

funds
trans-
ferred

Amount
received

by
munici-
pality

Amount
spent by
munici-
pality

% of  
available

 funds
spent by
munici-
pality

Total
avail-
able

Name of  
Municipality

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 % R’000

- - - -

- - - -

TOTAL 2 - - 2 2 100% 2 - - 2

ANNEXURE 1B

TRANSFER ALLOCATION TRANSFER 2007/08

Adjusted
Appropria-

tion Act

Roll
overs

Adjust-
ments

Total
avail-
able

Actual
transfer

% of
available

 funds
transferred

Appro-
priation

Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000

National Youth Commission 24 333 - - 24 333 24 333

SACAR - -

Isigodlo Trust 3 000 - - 3 000 3 000 3 000

TOTAL 28 333 - - 28 333 28 333 100% 24  614
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ANNEXURE 1C

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS/SUBSIDIES TO PUBLIC CORPORATIONS AND PRIVATE ENTERPRISES

TRANSFER ALLOCATION 2007/08

Adjusted
Appro-

priation
Act

Roll
Overs

Adjust-
ments

Total
Avail-
able

Actual
Transfer

% of
Available 

Funds
Trans-
ferred

Capital Current
Appro-

priation
Act

Name of  public
corporation/private enterprise

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 R’000

Private Enterprises

Transfers

Non Life Insurance Premiums

TOTAL 105 - - 105 11 10% - - 35

ANNEXURE 1D

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

Households

TRANSFER ALLOCATION 2007/08

Adjusted
Appro-

priation
Act

Roll
Overs

Adjust-
ments

Total
Available

Actual
Transfer

% of
Available

Funds
Transferred

Appro-
priation

Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000

Transfers

24 - 980

TOTAL 24 - 980 1 004 441 222% 441

ANNEXURE 1E

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS RECEIVED

Name Of  Organisation
SPONSORSHIP

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Received in cash

RMB -

Transnet -

Subtotal 213 -

Received in kind

UNICEF Situation Analysis of  Children Study -
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Name Of  Organisation
SPONSORSHIP

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

UNICEF T-Shirts-Children Day 40 -

EDCON T-Shirts-Children Day -

UNICEF UN Country Report -

ADB Research Report -

Travel Tickets -

IDC Sponsored Trips -

Subtotal -

TOTAL 2 096 -

ANNEXURE 1F

STATEMENT OF LOCAL AND FOREIGN AID ASSISTANCE RECEIVED

NAME OF 
PURPOSE BALANCE

REVENUE
BALANCE

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Received in cash

             - -

Flemish
Economic Assistance 
Programme:OSDP

802 - 802 -

Denmark
Economic Assistance 
Programme:((EDEDP) OSW

 - -

Economic Assistance 
Programme:GDC Research Project

 - -

European Union
Economic Assistance Programme:Pro 
Poor Policy Development Programme

4 342 -

-

 Subtotal  3 865  4 342  8 207 -

Received in kind

Deutsche 
Gesellschaft 
Fur Technische 
Zusammenarbeit
(GTZ)

 Harmonisation and alignment of  
- -

GTZ - -

GTZ - 303 303 -

 Subtotal 814 814 -

TOTAL 3 865 5 156 9 021 -
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ANNEXURE 1G

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS MADE AND REMISSIONS, REFUNDS AND 

PAYMENTS MADE AS AN ACT OF GRACE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

-

Paid in cash -

TOTAL 100 46

ANNEXURE 2A

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED AS AT 31 MARCH 2009 – LOCAL

institution
tee in

respect
 of

Original
guaran-

teed
capital
amount

Opening
balance

1 April 2008

tees
draw 

downs

during
the

year

tees
repayments/ 

cancelled/
 reduced/ 
released

during the 
year

Revalua-

tions

Closing
balance

31 March 
2009

teed inter-
est for 

year ended
 31 March

 2009

Realised
losses not 

recoverable 
i.e. claims 
paid out

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Motor
vehicles

Stannic Stannic 98 - - - 98 - -

296 98 - - - 98 - -

Housing

ABSA 323 47 - - - 47 - -

Nedbank 293 79 - - - 79 - -

Old Mutual 
Bank - - - - -

Peoples Bank - - - - -

Standard Bank - - - - -

1 258 309 - - - 309 - -

TOTAL 1 554 407 - - - 407 - -

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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ANNEXURE 2B

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2009

Nature of
liability

Opening
balance

01/04/2008

Liabilities 
incurred 
during

the year

Liabilities
 paid/cancelled/
reduced during

 the year

Liabilities 
recoverable 

(Provide details 
hereunder

Closing
balance

31/03/2009

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims against the 
department

Pending cases -

-

Other

Pending cases - 9 240 

- - 9 240 

TOTAL 19 950 2 450 9 910 - 12 490 

ANNEXURE 3

CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

outstanding outstanding
Total

31/03/2009 31/03/2008 31/03/2009 31/03/2008 31/03/2009 31/03/2008

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Foreign Affairs - 323

Minerals & Energy - - - 29 - 29

National Treasury - -

Public Service & Administration - - 2 7 2 7

Public Works - - 29 29

South African Police Service - - - -

Statistics South Africa - - - -

Transport - - - -

SARS - - - -

Social Development - - - -

- 779

Bophirima - - - -

- - 400 - 400 -

- - 400 400

TOTAL - 206 14 765 823 14 765 1 029
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ANNEXURE 4

INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

outstanding outstanding
Total

31/03/2009 31/03/2008 31/03/2009 31/03/2008 31/03/2009 31/03/2008

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current

Agriculture - - - -

Foreign Affairs - - 2 882 2 882

Government Printers - - - 97 - 97

Parliament - 43 8 43

Justice & Constitutional 
Development

-

Transport & Public Works - -

Water Affairs - - - -

Environment & Tourism - 8 - 8 -

Province of  the Eastern Cape - -

Premier(Kimberly)
700 - - - 700 -

Health - - - -

Labour 39 - - - 39 -

Eastern Cape - - - -

 PALAMA - - 220 - 220 -

TOTAL 1 573 62 3 031 14 022 4 604 14 084

for the year ended 31 march 2009
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Acronyms

APRM

AsgiSA

AUAA African Union 

BBBEE

COO

DPLG Department of  Provincial and Local Government

EU European Union

GCIS Government Communication and Information System 

GDP Gross domestic product 

GWM&E

FOSAD Forum of  South African Directors General

IBSA

IDP Integrated development plan 

JIPSA Joint Initiative on Priority Skills Acquisition 

MERCOSUR Common Market of  the South

M&E Monitoring and evaluation

MTEF

MTSF

NEPAD

NSDP National Spatial Development Perspective 

OECD Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development

PCAS Policy Coordination and Advisory Services

PFMA Public Finance Management Act 

RIA Regulatory impact assessment

SACU Southern African Customs Union

SADC Southern African Development Community 

SETA Sector education and training authority 

SMME

UN United Nations
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